GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
e i e

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION. SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Meeting of Board of Directors

Wednesday, October 22, 2003
7:30 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
Kent County Board Room, 3" Floor
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

AGENDA
I Call to Order
IL. Approval of September 24, 2003 Minutes Action
Convention
Arena III. DeVos Place Construction Update — Erhardt/Hunt Information
Authority
Joe Erhardt, Bill Sewall
John Logie, .
Chéerman IV. Committee Reports
Lew Chamberlin L . .
Clif Charles a. Building Committee Dale Sommers Information
David Frey
Steven Heacock b. Operations Committee Lew Chamberlin Information
Birgit Klohs i CVB Update Steve Wilson
Joseph Tomaselli Information
¢. Finance Committee CIif Charles
i Approval of Disbursements Action
il. Approval of SMG Financial Reports Action
iii. Approval of CAA Financial Report Action
iv. Acceptance of SMG Special Purpose Action
Financial Statements
V. SMG Report Rich MacKeigan Information
1. Facilities Calendar

VI Other Business

VII. Public Comment

VIII. Next Meeting Date: December 3, 2003

IX. Adjournment

VAN ANDEL

ARENA

Van Andel Arena

130 Fulton West

Grand Rapids, MI 49503
616.742.6600

Fax 616.742.6197

Grand Center

245 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, M| 49503
616.742.6600

Fax 616.742.6590



MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, September 24, 2003

I. Call to Order

Chairman John Logie called the meeting to order at 7:35 a.m. Chairman Logie presided and
Susan Waddell recorded in the absence of Birgit Klohs.

Attendance

Members Present: John Logie, Chairman

Lew Chamberlin

Clif Charles
David Frey
Steve Heacock
Joseph Tomaselli

Members Absent: Birgit Klohs

Staff/Others: David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Robert DuHadway DK Security
Joe Erhardt Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
George Helmstead CVB
Kurt Kimball City of Grand Rapids
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Bill Sewall Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
Dale Sommers CAA Owner Representative
Greg Sundstrom City of Grand Rapids
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County
Steven Wilson CVB
Tim Wondergem Wondergem Consulting

IL Minutes of Prior Meetings

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Frey, moved to approve the Minutes of the August 27, 2003,
meetings of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.

Il DeVos Place Construction Update

Mr. Erhardt reported that the Grand Gallery and Exhibit Hall remain on track for completion as
scheduled. The users have occupied the new scene shop and dressing rooms for DeVos Performance Hall
since early September. The deep foundation subcontractor has encountered an extensive amount of poor
soils near the Welsh Auditorium and is removing the dirt via over-excavation. The site work along
Michigan Street and Monroe Avenue will be completed this fall. Mr. Sewall reported that work is
underway for the installation of an additional escalator between the skyway level and the meeting level.
Final testing and balancing of the HVAC systems is nearly complete. The food service equipment has



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
September 24, 2003 - 2

arrived and set in place; inspections are scheduled for October. Renovation of the east hall will be
completed earlier than expected due to coordination efforts by SMG.

Iv. Committee Reports
Building Committee

Mr. Frey reported that skyway level carpeting is in process. Ceramic tile installations are complete in the
concession area and meeting, street, and parking level restrooms. Toilet partitions and fixtures are
installed, as well. The enclosure of the exhibit box is complete. Soffit trim will continue on the east and
west. Roofing, brick, and overhead doors at the dock are complete. Exterior windows at the dock area
are being framed in for glazing next month. The snowmelt slab has been placed in front of DeVos Hall
and finished pavers are installed. The area of new sidewalk in front of DeVos Performance Hall has been
open to the public since early September.

Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin stated the Operations Committee authorized SMG to work with the Grand Rapids Arts
Council to formulate policies and procedures for the display of artwork in DeVos Place. SMG will
present recommendations to the Committee in March 2004. The CAA will retain final control over any
decision or recommendation. Mayor Logie stated that he is looking for the Operations Committee to
bring a recommendation regarding a budget (beginning and ongoing) and Committee autonomy. The
Operations Committee approved an extension of the permanent advertising agreement with DP Fox,
subject to attorney review. SMG has selected D.K. Security to provide security services at both venues.

A subcommittee is planning the DeVos Place Grand Opening, which will be held on Saturday, December
20, from 10:00 a.m. — 6:00 p.m.

Mr. Wilson reported that organizers of the Woodworkers’ Expo are in town to work out logistical issues.
The Woodworkers are excited to hold the first convention in the new exhibit hall. The Woodworkers will
be followed immediately by the Michigan Vegetable Growers then Gordon Food Service. The CVB is
preparing a bid to host the U.S. Green Building Council convention in 2006. Major competitors include
Denver, Phoenix, Kansas City, and Minneapolis. After losing the National Association of Governmental
Purchasers convention, Grand Rapids is back in the running. Competitors Charlotte and Indianapolis do
not measure up to Grand Rapids in terms of value. The CVB recently hosted a national trade press tour
for 17 writers, including the New York Times and the Michelin travel publication.

Finance Committee
Mr. Heacock presented the Finance Committee report.
a. Approval of Disbursements and Payroll for the Period August 22 — September 15 2003

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Frey, moved to approve payment of disbursements and payroll
totaling $4,241,366.87. Motion carried unanimously.

b. Approval of SMG Financial Statements for the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena®

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for

the Van Andel Arena® and Grand Center for the period ended August 31, 2003. Motion carried
unanimously.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
September 24, 2003 - 3

c. Approval of CAA Preliminary Financial Statements Prepared by Beene Garter LLP

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the Grand Rapids — Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority Financial Statements for the period ended August 31, 2003. Motion carried
unanimously.

V. SMG Report

Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan stated that the Arena plays host to the Ringling Brothers Barnum & Bailey Circus
through Sunday. Starlight Express is playing at DeVos Performance Hall. Upcoming events include
Shania Twain, Alan Jackson, Trans-Siberian Orchestra, Michael W. Smith, Amy Grant/Vince Gill
Moody Blues, Bare Naked Ladies, Sports Hall of Fame induction, Pistons —v- Raptors pre-season game
Floyd Mayweather right, Griffins, AHL All Star game, Harlem Globetrotters, NCAA regional hockey
tournament, and high school basketball doubleheader.

’

VI.  Authorization Resolution

Mr. Wendt recommended approval of a procedural resolution requested by the Liquor Control
Commission. The resolution authorizes Mayor Logie, David Frey, or Birgit Klohs to sign any and all
documents required by the Liquor Control Commission. In response to a question from Mr. Frey, Mr.
MacKeigan stated that the CAA’s liquor license covers the Van Andel Arena® solely.

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Frey, moved to approve the Authorization Resolution. Motion
carried unanimously.

VII. Other Business

Warner, Norcross & Judd provided a status letter regarding the DeVos Place and Van Andel Arena®
trademark and copyright protection applications. Mr. Wendt stated that the additional bonds to finance
DeVos Place were sold yesterday. Closing should occur in October.

VIII.  Public Comments

None.

IX. Next Meeting Date

October 22, 2003. The CAA Board will meet Wednesday, December 3, for a combined
November/December meeting.

X. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 8:30 a.m.

Susan M. Waddell, Recording Secretary



BUILDING COMMITTEE REPORT
To
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention Arena Authority

QOctober 22, 2003

GRAND GALLERY
Bay Atea Intetiors, has completed polishing of the epoxy terrazzo system. Final cleaning of the glass is in
process along with millwork and paneling installation.

In the Meeting Rooms, drywall finishing, painting and ceiling grid installations are complete. The acoustic
wall panel installation is complete on the Meeting Level, and the street level. Carpet is complete on the
meeting level along with wood doors. Skyway level carpeting is complete and floor prep is in process on the
street level to begin carpet in early October.

Ceramic tile installations are complete in the Meeting Level, Street Level and Parking Level Resttooms. Toilet
partitions and fixtures are installed as well. Ceramic tile work is now complete in the concessions and public
restroom areas on the first floor adjacent to the Exhibit Hall. The concession equipment has been set in place
and is being hooked up.

Andy J. Egan Mechanical Co, and ElecTech are complete with the HVAC systems that serve the Grand
Gallery. Final testing and system balancing is complete. Final functional checkout of the equipment is in
process. '

Wotk is underway for the addition of an additional escalator between the Skyway Level and the Meeting
Level The escalator has been set and powered up. Adjustments are in process along with the restoration of
finishes.

Overall the Grand Gallery and Meeting spaces remain on track for completion as scheduled.

EXHIBIT HALL
The enclosure of the Exhibit Box is complete. Soffit trim will continue on the Fast and West. Roofing, brick
and ovethead doors at the dock ate complete. Extetior windows at the dock atea have been framed in and
glazed. The plywood floor protection is being removed and the Exhibit Hall floor utility boxes ate being
trimmed out. Final cleaning is in process.

SITE WORK
Work has progressed well along Michigan Street and in front of DeVos Hall. These areas, along with the

Montoe drop off lane are to he completed the fall of 2003. Planter Wall construction along the West side of
the Exhibit Hall began in April and continues. The snowmelt slab has been placed in front of DeVos Hall,
and finished pavers are installed. The area of new sidewalk in front of DeVos Hall is open to the public.
Itrigation and plantings are being coordinated for installation.

PHASE 3
Nicholson Contracting, the new deep foundation subcontractor has begun drilling for their foundation work.
They have completed two of seven work area sequences. The bad soils encountered last month have been
removed. The concrete subcontractors, Erhardt Construction and Grand River Construction have mobilized
and are performing preparatory work.

Minor renovation continues in the Grand Center as coordinated with SMG. Planning of the DeVos Hall
renovation work is ongoing,

Page 1



i October 2003

Peter MacGillivray,
Vice President of
Marketing and
Communications,

| The Specialty Equipment

Market Association :_3'_; B,

ow five showg af

Kted-hot mdustnes i

www.expoweb.com

10 show strategles
for tha. future

Roundtaﬁe CVB

: execs from outside

the mdustry_

consumer
Web site |




By Patricia D. Sherman - I l

for

Show

Cities that offer the fastest-growing populations, highest
personal income, expanded exhibit space, robust hotel
and airport development, and healthy expansion

Copyright © Levas Partiny
Al hts Ruservi

ith 1 million square feet of new show and meetng 15 fastest-growing. Also high on this year's list are perennial mega-

space added this year, 1,000 hotel rooms under con- show favorites: Chicago and Dallas. These taree, along with New *

struction, blockbuster atractions opening soon in the appeared on our 2001 list.

downtown convention corridor and the world’s busiest passenger airport, Eleven cities appear on the list for the firs: ome, including:

Atlanta takes the top spot in this year's list of fast-growing ciges for shows.  Minneapolis-St. Paul; St. Louis; Kansas City: MO; Grand Rapids, ML,
As in 2001, EXPO analyzed cities across the country based on fac-  Boston; Washington, DC; Balimore; Houster: Palm Beach County, F

tors that support and enhance shows (see sidebar) and identified the Denver; and Seattle. 2003's fast 15 are featured here in alphabetical or

88 EX PO O c T o B E R 20 0 3



Atlanta: Always New

Gregory Rancone, Vice President, Trade Show Sales, Atlanta CVB,
says he isn't surprised that Atlanta tops this year’s list. “Trade shows are
our forte,” he says, atributing Atlanta’s ability to increase share in a
sluggish marker to a combination of new exhibit space and new leisure
autractions that keep the meeting package fresh, even for groups that
regularly come to Atlanta.

The 450,000-square-foot expansion of the Georgia World
Congress Center (GWCC) that opened this year brought the total
space to 3.9 million square feet. The 400,000-square-foot Georgia
International Convention Center, which opened last year near the air-
port, is part of a development that will include
five 400-rcom hotels.

Two new leisure attractions underway adja-
cent to the GWCC add destination sizzle to
downtown. says Rancone. The Georgia Aquarium
will be the largest aquarium in the world when it
opens in 2005, and the new World of Coca-Cola
will open in 2006.

The Omni Hotel at CNN Center near the
GWCC is adding 600 rooms, and the Westin Peachiree Plaza has
completed a $30 million upgrade. Five other downtown hotels are
renovating and adding meeting space.

“Eighty percent of the U.S. population is within two hours of
Adanta by air,” says Rancone. A $3.4 billion development program at

Harsfield Intemational will upgrade facilities and add a passenger
» terminal. A fifth runway will open in 2005,

Baltimore: Location, Location, Location

Baltimore has a sleek convention center on the
edge of the wendy Inner Harbor district and a
downtown that's undergoing a $1 billion renewal.
Bur a big reason the city is a rade show favorite,
says Debera Dignan, Associate Vice President of
Convention Sales at the Baltimore Area Convention
and Visitors Associaton, is its location.

“We're on the DC-to-Boston corridor in the center of a third
of the nation’s population.” The city is easy to get
into and out of for exhibitors and for day or
overnight attendees, says Dignan. It's on a main
Amurak line and just 12 miles from Baltimore-
Washington International Airport.

Boston: Dig Done
When the new Boston Convention and Exhibition Center

opens next June with 1.7 million square feet, it will be the cap-

stone of an urban renewal project unrivaled in scope — and pub-

licity. The project includes the re-routing of Interstate 91 (the infa-
mous “Big Dig"), the development of 60 acres of South Boston water-
front, the addition of 6,000 downtown hotel rooms, and a $4.4 billion
modernization of Logan Intemnatdonal Airport.

“The Big Dig is done. That's the first thing I tell people,” says
Cynthia Hill, Vice President of Sales, Greater Boston Convention
Center. “The wip from Logan Intemational Airport to the convention
center is fast and simple.”

Chicago: The Big Gets Bigger

Creative response to market demands has enabled Chicago to
maintain its position as a trade show powerhouse for decades, says
William Utter, Vice President of Marketing, Chicago Convention and
Tourism Bureau. He cites recent reforms in labor relations at
McCormick Place, dedicated shuttles that get meeting-goers from
downtown hotels to McCormick Place in 10 minutes, and hotel rooms
at a variety of price points added to the downtown inventory in the
past three years.

Although individual business travel is not at pre-2001 levels,
Utter says, trade shows and meetings have bounced back. For the
next two years during peak meeting times, “McCormick Place is vir-
wally sold out,” he says, including McCormick Place West, the new
800,000-square-foot expansion. Work will begin on a fourth expan-
sion in 2007.

O’Hare Intemnational Airport is getting a $6.6 billion expansion
that will add a new terminal and an eighth runway. Downtown,
Midway Airport has been rebuilt and a new terminal has been added,
says Utter.

Dallas: Still Hot

Besides the addidon of a 200,000-square-foot column-free exhibit
hall, the renovations completed this year at the Dallas Convention
Center added a 60,000-square-foot art-filled lobby and upgraded the
technology. “We're the fastest convention center in the country in
terms of data throughput,”
says Tom Noonan, Vice
President of Convention Sales
and Service at the Dallas CVB.
“A headquarters hotel is on
the horizon,” he says, now
that the state legislature has approved a
funding mechanism.

Around the center, the
city’s Main Street Initiative
has developed a lively mix of
new restaurants and enter-
tainment. Dallas Fort-Worth
Intemational Airport, the
nation’s third busiest passen-
ger airport, is adding an eighth runway, a
new intemnational terminal
and a faster inter-terminal
tram system.

Denver: Smart
Destination

A $650 million expan-
sion of the Colorado Convention Center helped put Denver on this
year's list. But the fact that its population is the best-educated in the
country, as well as among the healthiest, gave it points in the workforce
and quality of life categories.

When the expansion is finished next year, it will double the size of
the exhibit hall to more 500,000 square feet and add a 50,000-square-
foot ballroom. Across the street will be a 1,100-room Hyatt headquar-

O cr o8B E R 2 0 0 3 EXPEO 57



RS <Y ‘-;“
i R -l Buitt for Shows

ters hotel with 80,000 square feet of space.
Last month, Denver Intermnational Airport opened a sixth runway.

Grand Rapids: Think Big

Grand Rapids, MI, is a small city with big ambitions. Its 1-million-
square-foot convention center, DeVos Place, will open next year and
connect by skywalk to a 12,000-seat arena and 1,000 hotel rooms,
including a 700-room headquarters hotel.

Grand Rapids has a natural appeal for regional groups, says
George Helmstead, CDME, Vice President of Sales at the Grand
Rapids/Kent County CVB. But even before construction began on
DeVos Place, there were plans to step up to national accounts. “We're

10 Up-and-Coming Cities

Cincinnati

Cincinnati will soon break ground on a convention center expansion that will

expand exhibit space to 200,000 square feet.
Fort Worth, TX

Fort Worth's newly expanded convention center (opened in May 2003) is
part of an overall downtown revitalization plan that has won national

recognition.

Hartford, CT

The city is also in the midst of building a brand new 550,000-square-foot con-
vention center (opening in 2005) with 1,650 rooms within walking distance.

Louisville, KY

Louisville is investing $750 million in tourism infrastructure projects currently
in the pipeline. Several new hotels are scheduled to come onling in the next

two years.

Nashville, TN

Nashwille offers a wide variety of new museums and cultural attractions,

such as the Lane Motor Museum, scheduled to open this fall.

Pittsburgh, PA

Pittsburgh offers a brand-new convention center. In addition, the city has attract-
ed a lot of new industries, including high-tech and biotech, in recent years.

Portland, OR
The Oregon Convention Center completed a 407,500-square-foot

expansion in April. A new development project to improve the city’s

transit system is currently underway.

San Diego

The Padres’ new ballpark is scheduled to open in the spring
of 2004, as well as a variety of new restaurants in the
Gaslamp Quarter and downtown.

San Francisco

The city offers a brand-new convention center expansion, and a recently

completed $2.4 billion airport project.

58 EXPO O c T 0 B E R 2 0 0 3

doing outreach through our state and regional associations. and we
sponsoring fams and site visits and even bringing in whole selectior
committees at our expense,” he says.

The efforts seem to be working. Eighty-lour new conventions a
shows are booked for 200+ through 2006, Helmstead says.

Houston: Space City

With a staggering amount of mostly new space, it's little wond
Houston made this year’s list.

The city has two vast exhibit complexes. Downtown, there’s
$165 million expansion and renovation of the George R. Brown
Convention Center and the 1,200-room Hilton Americas Houston
headquarters hotel, which will open next month. The addu
will bring the center’s total leasable space w 1.2 million sq
feet and the attached hotel will add another 90,000 square
feet. Two blocks from the convention center is the new
Houston Astros Conference Center ar Minute Maid Park.

South of downtown is Reliant Park, a 350-acre sports,
meeting and exhibition venue that comprises Reliane Stadit
Reliant Center, Reliant Astrodome and Reliant Arena. Toger
they offer 1.3 million square feet of exhibit space.

And that doesn't even count the half-dozen other pur-
pose-built exhibit venues and the hundieds of thousands ¢
feet of exhibit space in the city’s hotels.

Kansas City, MO: Moving to the Center

Kansas City, MO, is atuacting exhibitors because it oft
the most central location — it’s in the geographical center
the country — a renovated airport, plenty of new and upd.
space options, and hotel rates well below the national aver:
The Kansas City Convention Center is getting a $93 millios
expansion and facelift. The renovation and [u.hnolog) upg
will be completed in 2005, The 133,000-square-foot expar
sion will be finished in 2006.

At Kansas Ciry Intemational Airport, a $183 million
improvement project has renovated the three terminals. L
year, the 70,000-square-foot KCI-Expo Center opened next
the airport.

Minneapolis-St. Paul: Not Twins

The hyphen doesn't make these cities nwins. “We're wo
tinct major cities that happen to be next to cach other” says
Mary Sienko, Marketing Direc
ol Touchstone Energy Place at
River Cenrre in St. Paul. Their
mectng packages are differen




B s
I I - =558 Buitt for Shows

she says. Together, though, the meeting options in the two cities cover the
specrum from big national markets o moderate-sized regional markets.

This year, Minneapolis added 200,000 square feet of exhibit space
and 37 meeting rooms to the Minneapolis Comention Center, bringing
the total to 480,000 square feet. The project also added an auditorium
engineered so that parts pivot to create four meeting halls, says Kevin
Lewis, Vice President of Convendon Center Sales.

Downtown's much-appreciated seven-mile skyway system means
that “in the winter, you can go to meetings, then on to restaurants and
entertainment and leave your coat in the hotel om,” says Lewis.

St. Paul features the five-year-old RiverCentre complex with
200,000 square feet of exhibit space. The center is connected by sky-
walk to 1,200 hotel rooms.

New York: More Space, Please!

The Jacob K Javits Convention Center on Manhattan's West Side is
one of the most sought-after exhibit venues in the country. “We um
away almost as much business as we are able o handle,” says Mike
Eisgrau, Director of Public Affairs. The center hests 140 events a year, of
which 80 to 90 are major rade shows and conventions. A recently com-
pleted marketing feasibility study calls for exparding exhibit space from
the current 814,000 square feet to 1.3 million square feet, he says.

In Midtown, three meeting hotels, the New York Hilton, Sheraton
Manhattan and Sheraton New York are collaborating to market their
combined 5,000 rooms and 225,000 square fezt of space, says Terry
Dale, Executive Vice President of NYC&Co. =~~~ 7

Two of the three airports that serve the cin: LaGuardia and
Newark International, have recenty been upgraded. At John E
Kennedy International Airport a $10 billion expansion added a termi-
nal and more than doubled the gates to 56.

Palm Beach County: Getting Warm

When Palm Beach County, FL, is mentoned. probably the first things
that come to mind are the beaches (47 miles of them), the submropical
weather (78 degrees average annual temperature) znd the luxurious resorts.
Now; with a brand-new hi-tech convention center n West Palm Beach, this
county 60 miles north of Miami has become a trace show destnation.

The 350,000-square-foot convention certer is on a 19-acre
site adjacent to CityPlace, a $600 million retzil, restaurant and
entertainment development. Three thousand of the county’s
16,000 hotels rooms are nearby.

St. Louis: Downtown Changes

“Our convention product has changed dramatically in th
four years,” says Carole Moody, President of the St. Louis
Convention and Visitors Commission, explaining why the cit
moved onto this year's list. Two billion dollars has been inves
in the downtown area around America’s Center, the 2.7 milli
square-foot complex that includes the Cervantes Convention
Center and the Edward Jones Dome. Another half-billion doll
improvements are underway, she says.

The America’s Center isn't new, but a dedicated annual presc
tion fund — $2 million for the convention center and $+ million
the dome — keeps the facilities in mint condition.

Seattle: Innovation Breeds Success

The two-year-old expansion to the Washington State
Convention and Trade Center is still talked about as one of the
most innovative and successful expansions in recent years. It
spurred even more interest in Seattle, already popular for its bc
and quality of life. The expansion, which doubled the exhibit s
to 207,000 square feet, is connected to the main building by a
foot wide bridge across a busy street. Above the new space a 4
room Grand Hyatt was added.

Work has begun on a $2.4 billion upgrade to Sea-Tac
International Airport that will add a third runway and upgrade
terminal and transportation.

Washington, D. C.: Built-in Value

The opening in March of its grand 2.3 million-square-foot cor
tion center boosted Washington, DC, onto this year's list. Now the
is competitive for the biggest shows and conventions, says Elliott
Ferguson, Vice President, Sales and Services, Washington, DC,
Convention and Tourism Corp. In addition, the city, by its very na
is a high value destination for groups of all sizes. “All the museums
free. The Mewro is easy and inexpensive, and we’ve added a shuttle
between the convention center and the National Mall,” he says.

The Washington Convention Center contains 700,000 squa
feet of exhibit space, a 52,000-square-foot ballroom and 60 enclc
freight docks.

Patricia D. Sherman is a freelance writer based in Dallas. She can be rec
at wrsherman@hotmail .com.

How The Gities Were Chosen

To identify the fast-growing cities for shows, we analyzed and weighted variables in five areas.

Population: We rated cities two ways: A city
received a higher score if it had a metro popu-
lation of a million or more. Size indicated that
the city was likely to have sufficient regional
traffic, a large and varied labor force and the
ability to provide and maintain infrastructure
necessary to support shows. Bonus credit was
awarded to those among the top 10 fastest-
growing cities in the past three years, accord-
ing to the U.S. Census.

Personal Income: Cities were awarded a

80 EXpPaQ

O ¢c T o8B E &

point if the average personal income in the
region was in the top 50 U.S. cities.
Regional affluence suggested that facilities
and services could be supported, and it
added appeal for consumer shows.

Convention Centers: Cities received a point if
they had a new or expanded convention center
underway or completed in the past year.
Weight was given to cities where the conven-
tion center construction was tied to a larger
development project.

2 0 0 3

Hotel and airport development: Points wer:
awarded if the city was adding hotel rooms
and meeting and exhibit space and updating
airport facilities.

City expansion: Cities scored a paint if they
were in the fop 50 cities on the Expansion
Management magazine list. This list ranks the
heatth and vibrancy of a community and proje
growth potential. Among other factors, it takes
into account the quality of life and the educa-
tional level of the labor force.



Item IV.c.i

NVENESRANDUN

CITY OF GRAND RAPRPIDS

DATE: Octobber 10, 2003

TO: Steve Heacock
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Finance Committee Chair (/ j

FROM: Jana M. Wallace
Acting Assistant to the/City Manager

SUBJECT: Monthly Disbursements Report

Attached for your review are the lists of invoices processed for payment during the most
recent period. Expenditures for the period are summarized below.

Dates checks were issued Operating Fund Construction Fund
September 29, 2003 $ 22,496.07 $ 471,483.28
October 14, 2003 245,273.40 6,266,455.86
Payroll date — 09/19/2003 1,973.09 -

Payroll date — 10/03/2003 2,086.29 --

Disbursements from C/AAFunds $ 271,828.85 $6,737,939.14

Total disbursements for the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority during
the period September 19 through October 14, 2003, were $7,009,767.99.

Please call me at 456-4514 if you need additional information.

Attachments



sasuadxa uononujsuod-uou / buiesado =

sasuadxa paje|al uooN)SUoD) =
£002¥260 oB S yoAedoisauierd
juswAed 10} passad0id SINOAU| [e}0l  GE'6.6°'S6y ¢
uN022Yy Bunesad wouiy JuswAhed 10j paplwigng SadloAul [ejJol  20'96¥°22 ¢
JUNO22Y UOHINIISUOY) WOl JudwAhed J0) paplugng SJI0AU| [e}oL  8Z'E€8P'LIY $
SadIAIag [edsld A)1D Aq papiwiqng SadjoAu| - [ejol-qns 2096422 $
€002 1890300 - Jobeuew aAyessiuIIPE JOj Syjeuaq aoueInsu|  £002/71/60 zeere uiesH Auoud
lloshed £0/61/60 104 QUIU0D sa/ojdws - JGp sJebeuew ulwpy  €£002/61/60 00091 /S - uojesodioD Juswaiay YOI
llosAed £0/50/60 104 QIU0D S8holdws - JGp SJebeuew uwpy  £002/50/60 00°091 /G¥ - uogelodio) Juswaay YINOI
flosAed £0/61/60 404 QLU0 dakojdwayssAoldwa - Y0t sJBw uwpy  £002/61/60 00'9ve V0¥ - uonesodio) uswaimey YINDI
llosAed £0/50/60 104 SqLyU0D aakojdwayiakoldwsa - v10p SBw uwpy  £002/50/60 00°9v2 V0¥ - uojelodiod yuawainsy YNDI
€002 ‘91 1d9S-61 Bny-19)uad puels) Joj SaJIAISS Jomas pue Jajep  £002/81/60 16°€0L’} Jainseas) A0 spidey puelo
€002 Isnbny - J19jua)d pUEID JOj SIVIAISS |BOUOR|T  £002/S0/60 ¥8°16€91L ABisu3 ssewnsuo)d
#002/£2/80 - £002/€2/80 403 Adljod Ayjiqel| [e1eueD  £002/62/80 00'9¥8‘¢ MBS Juup dsiY JaybejieD ‘r inyuy
S$991A198 [easid Al Aq papiuqgng SadloAu|
Jebeue 30afoid Aq papiwqgng sedjoAu| - [ejol-qns  8Z'E8F'LLP $
€002 1snbny - apeibdn pue juswdinba | uelpusly  £00Z/62/80 ¥1°262'252 SwiajsAg ejeq ad10A
abieyo Josn ajsem snopiezeH  £002/02/80 00041 uebiydI Jo alels
€002 Isnbny - saj0ssad0e / Ye Jousjul |leH SOA®Q  £002/51/60 66°L£9°GL v aAIssaibold
90 9 ‘€002 isnbny - sabueyo pajsenbas JsUMO  £002/21/60 €82€9'C 3v anissaiboid
910 G '£00Z 1snbny - sabueyo pajsanbal ;sumQ  €002/L1/60 00'5€9°C 3v anissalboud
9 Jo ¥ ‘€002 ¥snbny - sabueyo pajsanbal;oumO  £002/91/60 5298521 3Jv aAaissalbold
9 10 € ‘002 Isnbny - sabueyd pajsanbai JaumQ £002/21L/60 $0'S19°'9 3y aAIssalbold
9 10 Z ‘£00zZ 1snbny - sabueyd pajsanbal Jaumo £002/21/60 22 00S Jv aAIssalbold
0 10 | ‘002 ¥snbny - sabueyd pajsanbal sjaumQ €002/21/60 19092 Jv aaIssalbold
€002 1snbny - solydeso |eJuswuosaug  €002/2L/60 18'¥9 Jv anissaiboud
€00z AInr - aAnejuasaidal sjosyyose 8)s-u0  £002/21/60 00°00v'v1L 3v anissaiboud
€00z Jsnbny - uoisuedx3 - J)uad puesd  €00Z/91/60 9€°92.°96 3v anissaiboud
€002 ‘2) - ¢ soqusydag - Buidwinp |10s pajeulwejuod  €002/€1/60 05°€L.'9¢ ll3pue Ajunod emeno
€002 ‘0€ - 0¢ Isnbny - Buidwnp jios pajeulwejuod  £002/LE/80 €coLL'ee llypue funod emeno
£002/90/60 10 se sabieyd auoyd Jejn|j@o saAneasaidal sJoumQ £002/11/60 rAR: AR SUOIIEDIUNWILIOY) [9)XON
Buiqes Jaqy / Joddoo - 1oafoud Buliged aunjongseyu]  £002/41L/60 006209} ou| ensjAz-uakay
suonenjeas yoop Buipeol  €002/L€/80  26°SL¥'L $ ou| Jaylem Hed
Jabeuepy 10ofoid Aq papiuigng Sadi0Au)
PaAI9231 S9JIAI0S [ pasinboe sjelajew jo uoljduasag ajeq unowy asAed
9910AU]

Aotjod Buidsaxpjoog Juaungd ay) Aq pazuoyiny se ‘€002 ‘62 Joquiejdag uo JuswAed 10j passasold S8910AU] JO IS
ALRIOHLNY VN3YV / NOILLNIANOOD ALNNOJ LN3X - SAIdVY ANVYO

o)
0

0000000

(CRORONGRONORORONONONONONONONONONS)



€0026001 21 SIx'0Aedojsauleed

jusuifed 10} Passa0id S3I0AU] [0

JUNO29Yy Bunesado wWoiy JuswAied 10} papILIGNS SD10AU| |€JO L
JUNO2IY UOHINIISUO) WOy JudlAed J0j PaILIGNS SBDI0AU]| |230 L

S90IAI9S [edsid A)1D Aq pajiuqng Sed10AU] - [2)01-qNS

92'622'115'9¢

Toverzsie §

98'56¢'992'9 $

ovEITSE §

sosuadxa Bugesado 7 uoiONN)SUS-UON = O
sasuadxa paje|ds UoHINIISUOD JAUSY) UOJUSAUDD = D)

€002 ‘0¢ aunr Buipua-iA eualy [9puy UBA 1O} 33) BABUSDU! [BNUUY  £002/.2/80 00°29%'6€EL elydiapeliud - ONS
£002 ‘0¢ aunp Buipus-iA Joj J8jUad pUEID 10§ 89) BANUBOUI [BNULY  £002/LE/80 00°902'9€ elydiapelyd - ONS
Bunesw 00z ‘v 1equisidag 1oy syoeus [ sebeiersg £00Z/¥2/60 89°.2 801A198 89400 JOH pidey
€002 Joquisjdag - sedlaias wes)s eualy  £002/0€/60 86'€90'22 SHOM 2lignd 30 1deq Auno) Juay
£002 Jequusjdag - sadlAIas Wea)s JBJua) pueld  £002/0£/60 6£658'c SHIOM 211GNd Jo 1deq Aunod jusy
€002 Joquia)dag - SadlAIas weals Jembls  £002/0€/60 0004 SHIOM 211qnd Jo ydaq Auno) jusy
€002 Jaquiaydas - eualy 10} Sabieyd Jomas/iajem Jaysw uonebu £002/62/60 0°9¥1 Jainseal) Ao spidey pueio
€002 Joquiaydag - eudly J0j SSOIAISS JOMSS PUB JBJeM £002/62/60 £2'610'Y Jamsealy A spidey pueio
€002 Asenuer - 18qoJ0Q - BUALY 10} Ul Jajem uopoajoid a1l £00Z/20/01 68801 Jainseal| AD spidey puess
€002 Joquiaydag - aunf - j[BMAYS 10} SBOIAISS 18MaS pUR JBIBM  £002/20/01 or'vs Jainseau AD spidey pueis
#0 Alenuer - €0 J2qOjQ - Y[emAxS Joj auy Jajem uonoajoid a1l £002/20/0L SZ'0€ Jainseal| Ay spidey puelo
€002 Jaquialdag - BuaIY 10§ S3OIAISS [BOUIIBIT  £00Z/+Z/60 92'899'v¢ ABrau3 ssswinsuo)
€002 MIEMANS - [BMANS J0j SBDIAIBS [BOUI0B|T  £002/t2/60 298012 AB1au3 siswNsuo)
€002 ‘62 Jaquisydeg papua poued Joj sedias buideapioog  £002/0£/60 00°€00°C d114speg aussg
S92IAIaG [BoS1d A1) Aq papiwgng S82j0AU|
JeBruep 10efoid Aq pepiuqNS Sa010AU| - [B)01-QNS 98°GGH'99Z9S
yuey o Jo Buiues) ‘Budwing ‘BunesH  €£00Z/¥2/60  ¥6E8PSL 2uj ‘dnues)? [ejuswuonaug s,6unox
£002 Jequajdag- seoiuas Juswabeusw 1afold  £002/0€/60 00°0b¥'LL H eleq ‘siawwog
€002 Jaquiajdag - a9y ubisap adejd SOA @0 £002/90/01 0589 v anissasboud
€002 sequiaydag - aAnejuasaidas spoapyole aYs-u0  £002/90/01 00°02¢'ch 3v anssaiboid
£00Z Joqwaldag - SBUOSSSIJe [ HE JoUdI [BH SOARd  £002/90/01 86°6¥¢'LC 3v aAissaiboid
€002 Jaquaydag - uoisuedx3 - Jsjua)d puerd  £002/90/0} ¥1'€£8'28 3v aAissaiboid
210 Z '£002 sequiaydag - sabueyo pajsanbal ;sumO  £002/92/60 00°000°092 3v aAissasboid
Z 10 | ‘€002 Jequisydag - sabueyo pajsenbalssoumO  £002/90/01 29°€eL's 3v aAissasboid
ajqed doo} Jo uone|jejsul - wool bunesw 8Jeld SOASQ  £002/LL/L0 12'252'8T olpny uoReAcwald
£002 ‘62 - 9¢ Jaquiaydag - Buidwnp [los pajeunueluod  £00Z/0€/60 89°Z18°L liypue Aunod emeno
0l #uswhed - 18)ua) uoyuBAUOY 10} SwdIsAS Aundas aldyIN  £002/02/60 00°0¥6'C¢ Aunoag ajeispiy
£002 Joqwaldag - saoinas aseyd uogonysucd  £00Z/20/01 11'8E6'VE ou] sjueynsuo) bugsay sieusiew
€002 Jaquajdag - saoinuas Juswabeuew sfold  £002/20/60 05°25¢'L ou| Buninsuod Aeso d 1
Janas ajnpow ‘sjqed ‘Aiddns samod Oy £002/0€/60 18°1L02°¢L sl
Buiqeo Jaqy / 19ddoo - yoafosd Buyges simonnsenul  £002Z/¥2/60 000ek'ce au| ensiAz-uska
£002 Jaquiaydag - sBuneaw / Buninsuoo wejsAs Aiunoes  £00Z/20/01 00°00€'2Z sisAg undag/aud Jabulied © Auap
€ # wawAed ssasboid soy ebeuiersy  £002/0£/60 00°1L€2'LE unoooy abeulelsy vv/O OM-HO
[eaL30818 / Aauoseuw / [eisuab - uoRonusuo) ip¢ #wd ssaiboid  £002/0£/60 00295'962'S $ AINJUBA JUIOf' V JunY - Jpseu3
J9b6euey 198load Aq papnuqng s8d10AuU|
PoAIadal S81A19S [ palinboe sjeualew jo uondudsag ajeq junowry adAed
9210AU]

Koljod Buideaypioog juauny ay) Aq pazuoyiny Se ‘€002 ‘y1 Joqoo0 Uo JusAed 10} passanoid S8dI0AU] JO IS
ALROHLNY VNIV / NOILNIANOOD ALNNOD IN3IM - SAIdVY ANVYD

0000000000000 O0

VQOOOOLOLLOLLLOLLOLLLOLLOLOLO



Item IV.c.ii

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2004

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE

FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

SALES

OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

CAPITAL

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
30 280 310 292 18
21,842 529,190 651,032 557,075 (6,043)
55,663 1,361,461 1,417,124 1,406,774 10,350
23,570 771,865 795,435 792,184 3,251
79,233 2,133,326 2,212,559 2,198,958 13,601
7,953 166,500 174,453 182,000 (7,547)
87,186 2,209,826 2,387,012 2,380,958 6,054
27,609 84,156 111,765 112,208 443
38,183 159,033 197,216 198,711 1,495
15,334 57,329 72,663 76,439 3,776
91,241 696,771 788,012 799,347 11,335
81,448 657,195 738,643 748,260 9,617
14,144 65,223 79,367 81,644 2,277
37,715 99,891 137,606 133,188 (4.418)
192,510 1,642,188 1,834,698 1,829,584 (5,114)
498,184 3,461,786 3,959,970 3,979,385 19,411
(410,999) (1,161,960) (1,572,958) (1,598,427) 25,465
(410,999) (1,161,960) (1,572,958) (1,598,427) 25,465

September marks the end of the first quarter for DeVos Place. The
facility has performed below expecations for revenue, however, has
performed better than expected on indirect expenses netting out to
a posititve variance overall. The forecast shows little change overall
to the expectation of the fiscal year as most of the unknowns are

tied to the opening of the new portion of the facility




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS

FOR MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending

and the YTD ending June 30, 2004, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events

Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income

Other Income

Indirect Expenses

Net income

YTD

Number of Events

Attendance

Direct Event income
Ancillary Income

Other Income

Indirect Expenses

Net Income

Less Capital

Net Income after Capital

EVENT INCOME

September September September
Actual Budget FY 2003

20 18 30
18,532 24,205 33,793
$44,313 $49,652 $59,563
15,570 21,979 27,259
4,839 15,166 6,040
(158,631) (245,301) (164,653)
($93,909) ($158,504) ($71,791)

YTD 2004 YTD 2004 YTD 2003

Actual Budget Prior Year
30 28 66
21,842 36,955 49,576
$55,663 $70,625 $266,219
23,570 26,223 78,176
7,953 45,498 17,558
(498,184) (735,903) (490,521)
($410,998) ($593,557) ($128,569)
($410,998) ($593,557) ($128,569)

Event income fell below expectations as a concert was budgeted to be hosted in the
Theater. However, multiple concerts have been booked in November, thus timing of events,

not lack of events, caused the shortfall for September.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in below expectations due to the lower than expected food revenue
generated from the Focus on Life dinner. This event was effected by the decrease in size of
the facility which caused their overall capacity for the event decrease.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in lower than expected for the month. As the new portion of the
facility is closer to opening, expenses will begin to balance out.




DE VOS PLACE
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 09/30/03

----------------- CURRENT - - <= = === === == ===mm== —ccmomcmmmem=eee-YTD-om o= oommommmemm oo
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 40,059 42,975 59,300 53,147 65,375 267,226
SERVICES INCOME 4,254 6,677 263 2,516 5,250 <1,007>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 44,313 49,652 59,563 55,663 70,625 266,219
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 6,630 9,441 14,103 9,120 10,323 33,048
NOVELTY 1,124 1,250 0 1,124 1,250 7,336
ELECTRICAL 532 2,177 500 604 2,177 1,154
OTHER ANCILLARY 7,284 9,111 12,656 12,722 12,473 36,637
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 15,570 21,979 27,259 23,570 26,223 78,176
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 59,883 71,631 86,822 79,232 96,848 344,395
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 4,839 15,166 6,040 7,953 45,498 17,558
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 64,722 86,797 92,862 87,186 142,346 361,953
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 8,741 9,352 6,902 27,609 28,056 20,969
FINANCE 10,135 16,559 11,028 38,183 49,677 35,052
MARKETING 3,892 6,370 2,690 15,334 19,110 9,271
OPERATIONS 34,831 62,507 41,018 91,241 187,521 100,616
EVENT MANAGEMENT 24,382 49,534 30,628 81,448 148, 602 102,712
BOX OFFICE 5,128 6,802 4,240 14,144 20,406 16,642
SALES 10,836 11,100 0 37,715 33,300 0
OVERHEAD 60,685 83,077 68,147 192,510 249,231 205,259
INDIRECT EXPENSES 158,631 245,301 164,653 498,184 735,903 490,521
NET OPERATING INCOME <93,909> <158,504> <71,791> <410,999> <593,557> <128,568>
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) <93,909> <158,504> <71,791> <410,999> <593,557> <128,568>




Advertising Billed
Stagehands Billed
Security Billed

Ushers & Tix Takers Billed
Box Office Billed
Ticketing Service Billed
Utilities Billed

City Police Fire Billed
Traffic Control Billed
EMT Medical Billed
Insurance Billed
Telephone Billed

Other Production Billed

TOTAL SERVICE INCOME

Advertising Expense
Stagehand Wages

Security Wages

Contracted Security Expense
Ushers & T/T Wages

Ticket Sellers Wages

Ticket Service Charge Expense
City Police Fire Expense
Traffic Control Expense

EMT Medical Expense
Cleaning Wages

Insurance Expense
Allocated Telephone Expense

Production Expense

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE

NET SERVICE INCOME

DE VOS PLACE

STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/03

---------------- CURRENT---+---------==== =-=-----------YEAR TO DATE-------------

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
] 0o’ 0 0 ¢} 6,217
59,393 54,900 28,335 67,027 58,950 63,266
2,700 4,260 3,576 2,700 5,960 6,871
8,843 10,300 10,360 9,185 11,050 15,911
1,300 1,400 1,700 1,300 1,700 2,850
4,852 9,275 6,296 4,852 12,163 15,097
0 0 0 300 0 0
992 "} 0 992 0 713
0 0 153 53 0 153
1,130 1,272 1,425 1,130 1,822 2,271
0 0 0 0 0 655
400 525 900 400 525 4,890
2,436 0 852 2,438 0 5,717
82,045 81,932 53,596 90,376 92,170 124,610
0 0 0 0 0 6,372
58,073 53,253 27,090 65,240 57,182 60,602
0 4,260 0 0 5,960 0
2,700 0 3,576 2,700 0 6,888
6,190 7,210 7,252 6,429 7,735 11,138
521 925 1,373 521 1,275 2,207
2,073 3,710 2,653 2,073 4,721 5,895
992 0 0 992 0 713
229 0 1,246 458 750 2,121
855 1,222 1,179 855 1,772 1,825
3,383 4,675 8,432 5,629 7,525 21,981
0 0 0 0 0 505
100 0 0 100 0 0
2,676 0 532 2,863 0 5,370
77,790 75,255 53,333 87,859 86,920 125,617
4,254 6,677 263 2,516 5,250 <1,007>




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 09/30/03

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH '’
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY

FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

2,311,139
188,507
67,970

2,567,616

939,023
207,128
458,142

45,960
1,328,362
<410,999>

2,567,616



DE VOS PLACE
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 09/30/03

———————————————— ~CURRENT---=---====cccwmm= mm-eecccceeemmcce--YTD-----rro-ce=-----—-=

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR

Salaries Administration 50, 345 81,937 40,862 153,655 245,811 129,529
Part-Time 4,296 11,295 8,951 10,172 33,885 20,111
Wages-Trade 70,783 94,699 46,054 108,739 284,097 124,371
Auto Allowance 1,971 ] 0 5,912 0 (o}
Auto Expense 150 2,271 1,521 450 6,813 4,562
Taxes & Benefits 30,504 46,930 21,298 68,585 140,790 63,535

Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <83,312> <115,718> <56,200> <120,918> <347,154> <134,621>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 74,738 121,414 62,487 226,595 364,242 207,487
Contracted Security 6,038 0 5,563 16,524 0 15,642
Other Contracted Services 155 183 186 155 549 558
Travel & Entertainment 472 1,209 302 3,225 3,627 1,655
Corporate Travel 0 833 0 221 2,499 0
Meetings & Conventions 3,214 2,000 0 7,274 6,000 3,030
Dues & Subscriptions 446 42 320 1,983 126 320
Employee Training 0 833 0 0 2,499 0
Computer Expense 2,879 5,417 2,530 7,754 16,251 8,625
Professional Fees 1,920 2,625 2,421 8,589 7,875 5,845
Marketing & Advertising 1,090 2,967 1,078 16,172 8,901 2,293
Box Office Expenses <6> 0 <1l4> <6> 0 57
Small Equipment 0 0 108 0 0 2,498
Trash Removal 188 1,000 1,324 514 3,000 2,556
Equipment Rental 1,857 500 153 1,933 1,500 342
Landscaping 0 0 0 0 0 <69>
Exterminating 375 0 375 750 0 1,125
Construction Costs 3,207 3,200 2,511 10,002 9,600 2,511
Repairs & Maintenance 3,634 12,084 9,183 11,832 36,252 20,265
Supplies 4,682 14,667 10,612 13,029 44,001 22,230
Bank Service Charges 571 750 631 1,750 2,250 1,863
Insurance 8,288 18,010 7,929 20,950 54,030 20,713
Printing & Stationary 0 625 0 1,332 1,875 0
Office Supplies 1,096 625 860 1,863 1,875 2,097
Postage 0 417 9 271 1,251 9
Parking Expense 1,629 2,000 1,831 4,964 6,000 4,640
Telephone Long Distance 2,242 4,375 2,996 6,588 13,125 8,875
Utilities 20,963 30,000 31,891 75,960 90,000 96,985
Bage Fee 19,354 19,525 19,368 58,063 58,575 58,368
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <100> 0 0 <100> 0 o
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 83,893 123,887 102,166 271,589 371,661 283,034

TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 158,631 245,301 164,653 498,184 735,903 490,521




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Security System Upgrades 30,000 30,000 Open
Phone System Upgrades 15,000 15,000 Open
Ice Deck Cover 100,000 45,000 55,000 50% Complete
Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000 15,000 Open
Banquet Room - Interior 25,000 25,000 Open
Total Arena 185,000 45,000 140,000
DeVos Place
Total DeVos Place - - -
Grand Total Capital Improvements 185,000 45,000 140,000
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2003
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,433,901 (1,572,958) (139,057) 1,349,134
Benchmark 1,599,958  (1,598,423) 1,535 1,206,573
Excess (166,057) 25,465 (140,592) 142,561

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2003
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 232,252 232,252 464,504 454,950
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,689,320 2,387,012 7,076,332 7,118,841
Benchmark Revenue 4,335,280 2,378,432 6,713,712 6,237,971
Revenue Excess 354,040 8,580 362,620 880,870
Incentive Fee ** - - - 176,173
Total SMG Management Fee 232,252 232,252 464,504 631,123

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IV.c.ii



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2004

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS ALLOCATION FOR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL

Comments:

September marks the end of the first quarter of the fiscal year. The first
quarter fell a little below expected levels due to hosting two fewer concerts
than what was shown in the original budget. Current forecast shows the
Arena holding consistent with the budget as the calendar looks consistent
with original expectations.

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

18 107 125 133 (8)
102,976 623,240 726,216 752,240 (26,024)
234,434 939,736 1,174,170 1,235,522 (61,352)
276,550 1,303,570 1,580,120 1,591,062 (10,942)
510,984 2,243,306 2,754,290 2,826,584 (72,294)
482,780 1,452,250 1,935,030 1,915,000 20,030
993,764 3,695,556 4,689,320 4,741,584 (52,264)
27,665 77,457 105,122 100,609 (4.513)
34,984 152,708 187,692 190,277 2,585
44,637 166,340 210,977 208,453 (2,524)
231,070 933,540 1,164,610 1,177,421 12,811
21,877 85,772 107,649 114,363 6,714
23,009 88,494 111,503 117,992 6,489
8,396 27,110 35,506 36,146 640
266,882 1,065,478 1,332,360 1,332,801 441
658,520 2,596,899 3,256,419 3,278,062 22,643
335,243 1,098,657 1,433,901 1,463,522 (29,621)
45,000 45,000 (45,000)
290,243 1,098,657 1,388,901 1,463,522 (74,621)

NI

General Manhger 7

Dlrectorof F@/ N



VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS

FOR MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending

and the YTD ending June 30, 2004, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH September September September
Actual Budget FY 2003
Number of Events 13 14 13
Attendance 65,268 69,200 67,470
Direct Event Income $80,262 $91,314 $145,397
Ancillary Income 128,955 137,500 95,903
Other Income 153,953 169,584 140,539
Indirect Expenses (230,308) (272,865) (262,985)
Net Income $132,862 $115,533 $118,854
YTD YTD 2004 YTD 2004 YTD 2003
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 18 21 25
Attendance 102,976 123,200 145,955
Direct Event Income $234,434 $371,119 $398,628
Ancillary Income 276,550 413,917 326,215
Other Income 482,780 478,752 457,122
Indirect Expenses (658,521) (817,625) (703,531)
Net Income $335,243 $446,163 $478,434
Less Capital ($45,000) ($16,750)
Net Income after Capital $290,243 $446,163 $461,685

EVENT INCOME

Event income fell below expectations as the Ringling Brothers Circus, and the Neil Young
concert hosted during the month fell below budgeted expectations. It should be noted that

both shows left very happy with how the overall sales/building performed.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income, while falling short of budget, performed better than expected in terms of
per patron spending. This is a positive trend that has been realized over the past few months
and hope to continue with the start of the Griffins season in October.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in below expecations, mainly due to savings in utilities and labor.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 09/30/03

----------------- CURRENT- - - <= ——===-——=mm=men —cmeemmmmmno—aeooYTDmoccmmmmmommeeo oo oo o
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 159,814 158,500 171,178 297,842 499,500 417,301
SERVICES INCOME <79,553> <67,186> <25,781> <63,408> <128,381> <18,673>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 80,262 91,314 145,397 234,434 371,119 398,628
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 124,437 128,330 82,633 226,857 347,267 251,149
NOVELTY 3,748 8,400 12,500 48,922 65,100 72,756
OTHER ANCILLARY 770 770 770 770 1,550 2,310
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 128,955 137,500 95,903 276,550 413,917 326,215
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 209,217 228,814 241,300 510,983 785,036 724,843
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 153,953 159,584 140,539 482,780 478,752 457,122
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 363,170 388,398 381,839 993,763 1,263,788 1,181,965
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 9,736 8,258 9,686 27,665 24,774 23,734
FINANCE 12,163 15,732 10,930 34,984 47,196 30,869
MARKETING 10,741 17,316 18,272 44,637 52,228 43,769
LUXURY SEATING 6,911 9,832 12,845 23,009 29,496 26,435
OPERATIONS 88,919 98,117 101,628 231,070 294,351 270,742
BOX OFFICE 8,009 9,531 8,446 21,877 27,343 20,557
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 2,115 3,013 2,380 8,396 9,039 7,479
OVERHEAD 91,715 111,066 98,799 266,882 333,198 279,946
INDIRECT EXPENSES 230,308 272,865 262,985 658,521 817,625 703,531
NET OPERATING INCOME 132,862 115,533 118,854 335,242 446,163 478,434
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) o 0 0 45,000 0 16,750
OTHER EXPENSES 0 0 0 45,000 0 16,750
NET INCOME (LOSS) 132,862 115,533 118,854 290,242 446,163 461,684




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 09/30/03

---------------- CURRENT-------=---uv==== e==----=c-----YEAR TO DATE-------------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 17,819 0 23,747 74,655 0 81,607
Labor Billed 2,070 540 1,620 4,230 3,780 5,452
Changeover Setup Billed 14,912 14,300 13,948 26,708 38,600 39,384
Stagehands Billed 30,365 14,600 26,256 106,178 126,900 159,149
Security Billed 12,446 8,100 10,249 36,792 46,350 60,170
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 12,339 6,600 12,393 25,340 30,900 41,740
Box Office Billed 387 400 387 1,935 2,800 2,967
Ticketing Service Billed 4,867 8,000 3,377 38,110 61,000 54,771
City Police Fire Billed 588 336 336 1,820 2,352 3,864
EMT Medical Billed 1,450 725 1,050 3,350 4,575 6,813
Cleaning Billed 12,644 6,600 13,333 24,715 30,950 39,932
Insurance Billed 0 0 0 0 0 455
Group Sales Commissions Billed [] 0 189 0 0 189
Telephone Billed 1,860 1,660 1,349 7,460 9,320 9,769
Other Production Billed 61,139 5,000 32,607 85,583 41,800 150,650
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 172,887 66,861 140,840 436,874 399,327 656,912
Advertising Expense 17,894 [ 23,938 72,828 ] 79,241
Labor Wages 1,760 459 1,377 3,596 3,672 4,634
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 20,295 19,000 14,304 32,138 50,091 50,880
Stagehand Wages 37,881 21,763 32,512 110,816 138,972 160,452
Contracted Security Expense 22,655 15,280 24,371 46,654 59,480 75,928
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 21,639 21,280 14,072 32,227 59,520 50,093
Ticket Sellers Wages 329 0 329 1,316 0 2,522
Ticket Sellers P/R Taxes Bene 0 0 0 329 [ 0
Ticket Service Charge Expense 8,624 23,000 11,091 35,695 91,000 53,211
City Police Fire Expense 588 1,586 336 1,820 5,188 3,864
EMT Medical Expense 1,771 2,131 1,809 3,530 7,500 6,145
Contracted Cleaning Expense 26,119 24,000 14,538 36,687 67,409 54,388
Insurance Expense 12,816 ] 8,341 12,816 0 9,117
Allocated Telephone Expense 620 548 413 2,487 3,076 3,013
Production Expense 79,448 5,000 19,190 107,343 41,800 122,098
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 252,440 134,047 166,622 500,282 527,708 675,586

NET SERVICE INCOME <79,553> <67,186> <25,781> <63,408> <128,381> <18,673>




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 09/30/03

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY

FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

5,104,469
1,058,145
96,245

513,233

6,772,092

55,204
486,669
1,826,988
1,959,243

152,199
2,001,548
290,242



VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 09/30/03

----------------- CURRENT----c--==we-m--cee —cmcemocmcceceoceaYD---ce--mmmmmmmmmm e

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR

Salaries Administration 49,318 43,608 41,511 136,862 130,824 128,819
Part-Time 2,085 2,778 4,863 5,770 8,614 10,736
Wages-Trade 60,387 78,186 58,063 159,184 234,558 218,081
Auto Allowance 577 0 0 1,731 ] 0
Auto Expense 300 835 777 900 2,505 2,331
Taxes & Benefits 27,531 33,656 25,477 78,012 100,968 84,332

Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <52,422> <61,667> <47,322> <150,301> <186,251> <206,615>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 87,777 97,396 83,370 232,157 291,218 237,685
Contracted Security 18,921 19,583 13,050 58,156 58,749 50,146
Contracted Cleaning 2,098 2,167 2,098 13,015 6,501 6,294
Other Contracted Services 628 300 314 942 900 972
Travel & Entertainment 21 325 386 2,648 975 3,737
Corporate Travel [0} 625 0 0 1,875 2,745
Meetings & Conventions 699 625 210 699 1,875 210
Dues & Subscriptions 446 208 1,074 2,601 624 1,074
Employee Training 0o 1,000 0 39 3,000 0
Miscellaneous Expense 0 0 62 [ 0 62
Computer Expense 3,191 5,417 5,369 7,743 16,251 10,308
Professional Fees 3,137 2,167 5,153 7,194 6,501 7,147
Marketing & Advertising 564 8,250 16,480 17,925 24,750 22,525
Box Office Expenses <35> 0 3 <276> 0 344
Small Equipment 0 [ 972 0 0 972
Trash Removal 763 1,250 825 2,501 3,750 3,940
Equipment Rental 1,151 1,300 1,656 3,397 3,900 4,630
Landscaping [} 292 [¢] 0 876 0
Exterminating 248 333 495 495 9299 743
Cleaning 8,818 450 0 8,818 1,350 8,739
Repairs & Maintenance 4,459 10,666 8,287 17,394 31,998 23,874
Supplies 13,911 15,091 31,748 23,648 45,273 52,297
Bank Service Charges 803 1,000 633 2,120 3,000 1,941
Insurance 10,160 13,699 10,211 27,788 41,097 27,453
Printing & Stationary (V] 1,917 0 0 5,751 0
Office Supplies 345 1,000 4,110 1,080 3,000 4,895
Postage 2,296 1,000 386 2,659 3,000 1,973
Parking Expense 4,231 1,592 2,048 7,937 4,776 5,934
Telephone Long Distance 2,948 4,583 2,399 14,738 13,749 13,273
Utilities 45,870 64,150 56,302 153,075 192,450 162,395
Base Fee 19,354 19,525 17,869 58,063 58,575 56,869
Common Area Expense <1,875> <2,671> <2,111> <5,549> <8, 013> <6,633>

Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <620> <375> <413> <2,487> <1,125> <3,013>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 142,531 175,469 179,616 426,364 526,407 465,847

TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 230,308 272,865 262,985 658,521 817, 625 703,531




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Security System Upgrades 30,000 30,000 Open
Phone System Upgrades 15,000 15,000 Open
Ice Deck Cover 100,000 45,000 55,000 50% Complete
Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000 15,000 Open
Banquet Room - Interior 25,000 25,000 Open
Total Arena 185,000 45,000 140,000
DeVos Place
Total DeVos Place - - -
Grand Total Capital Improvements 185,000 45,000 140,000
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2003
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,433,901  (1,572,958) (139,057) 1,349,134
Benchmark 1,599,958  (1,598,423) 1,535 1,206,573
Excess (166,057) 25,465 (140,592) 142,561

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2003
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 232,252 232,252 464,504 454,950
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,689,320 2,387,012 7,076,332 7,118,841
Benchmark Revenue 4,335,280 2,378,432 6,713,712 6,237,971
Revenue Excess 354,040 8,580 362,620 880,870
Incentive Fee ** - - - 176,173
Total SMG Management Fee 232,252 232,252 464,504 631,123

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first §1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item IV.c.iii

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Three Months Ended September 30, 2003

! BEENE GARTER LLP



ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have compiled the accompanying statements of net assets and cash receipts and
disbursements - budget to actual for the operating account and construction accounts of the
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority for the three months ended
September 30, 2003, in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. These statements do
not include the cash receipts and disbursements of the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center which
are operated by the Authority. The financial statements presented have been prepared on the
cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements information that is the
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial
statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures ordinarily included in financial
statements prepared on the cash basis of accounting. If the omitted disclosures were included in
the financial statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the Authority’s cash
receipts and disbursements. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those
who are not informed about such matters.

Ree e Hacker Lt

October 8, 2003
Grand Rapids, Michigan

BEENE GARTER LLP
50 MONROE NW T 616.235.5200
o WINE CRORO F 616.235.5285
GRAND RAPIDS

MICHIGAN BUSINESS ADVISORS » CPAS > FINANCIAL SERVICES

49503-2679 INTERNATIONALLY KNOWN AS MOORE STEPHENS BEENE GARTER PLC www.beenegarter.com

1.800.824.7882



INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

" BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement A

Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2003

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ASSETS CONSTRUCTION OPERATING TOTAL
Current Assets:
Cash and Equivalents - Authority $ 12,506,889 1,546,687 $ 14,053,576
' Cash and Equivalents - Facility - 3,620,013 3,620,013
Investments 17,946,710 - 17,946,710
Receivables, Net - 1,232,040 1,232,040
Prepaid Expenses - 117,750 117,750
Contract Rights - 5,737 5,737
Total Current Assets 30,453,599 6,522,227 36,975,826
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Construction in Progress 56,229,162 3,507 56,232,669
Total Noncurrent Assets 56,229,162 3,507 56,232,669
TOTAL ASSETS 86,682,761 6,525,734 93,208,495
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable - 643,033 643,033
Accrued Expenses - 418,296 418,296
Advance Ticket Sales - 1,079,206 1,079,206
Advance Deposits - 202,952 202,952
Deferred Facility Income - 441,506 441,506
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 2,784,993 2,784,993
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets 56,229,162 3,507 56,232,669
Fund Balance 30,453,599 3,737,234 34,190,833
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 86,682,761 $ 3,740,741 $ 90,423,502

" BEENE GARTER LLP

See accountants' report



Statement B

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Operations)
From July 1, 2003 to September 30, 2003

OPERATING ACCOUNT
Facilities Operations Capital Replacement
Budget Actual Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
. Facility Operations $ 182755 $ - $ - $ -
Land Lease 107,000 35,604 - -
Interest on Investments 20,000 2,512 12,000 1,475
Capital Replacement Reserve Transfer 930,402 - (930,402) -
Miscellaneous Revenue 8,000 - - -
TOTAL RECEIPTS 2,892,967 38,116 (918,402) 1,475
DISBURSEMENTS
Accounting / Auditing Services 59,245 3,691 - -
Insurance - Property and Liability 33,595 3,846 - -
Legal Services 32,000 12,457 - -
Other Contractual Services 42,000 - - -
Pedestrian Safety 95,000 - - -
Facility Management Fees - - - -
Meeting Expense 890 55 - -
Supplies 1,000 96 - -
Transfer to Construction Account 1,000,000 - - -
Sub-total Service Disbursements 1,263,730 20,146 - -
Electricity 1,031,332 139,373 - -
Steam 831,834 44,102 - -
Water and Sewer 99,300 11,104 - -
Sub-total Utility Disbursements 1,962,466 194,579 - -
Building Additions and Improvements - - 45,000 -
Facility Equipment Acquisition - - 115,000 -
Sub-total Capital Disbursements - - 160,000 -
Employee Wages 53,300 12,300 - -
Employee Benefits 17,366 5,320 - -
Sub-total Payroll Disbursements 70,666 17,620 - -
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 3,296,862 232,344 160,000 -
Excess / (Deficit) of Funds $ (403,895) $ (194,228) $ (1,078,402) $ 1,475
Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year 3,403,895 2,104,933 1,596,704 1,828,561
Total Net Assets - End of Period $ 3,000,000 $ 1,910,705 $ 518,302 $ 1,830,036
See Comments See Comments
1and 2 1and?2

Comment 1: Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement budgets were approved by the Convention / Arena
Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on May 28, 2003.

Comment 2: Facilities Operations columns include receipts and disbursements processed by the
C/AA. SMG receipts and disbursements are reported separately in the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center
financial statements prepared by SMG.

% BEENE GARTER LLP "=



Statement C

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Construction)
From July 1, 2003 to September 30, 2003

Convention Center Construction

Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
Grand Action $ 32,048,961 $ -
Downtown Development Authority 10,000,000 5,000,000
County of Kent 5,000,000 -
City of Grand Rapids - grant proceeds 3,528,884 -
Transfer from Operating Fund 1,000,000 -
Interest on Investments 397,550 119,559
TOTAL RECEIPTS 51,975,395 5,119,559
DISBURSEMENTS
Architectural and Engineering Services 4,605,255 387,369
Construction Material Testing 583,610 53,008
Construction - GMP Contractor 56,390,602 11,516,433
Sub-total Contractor Disbursements 61,579,467 11,956,810
Insurance - Property / Liability 116,100 116,100
l.egal Services 7,000 295
Owner's Representatives 245,000 70,643
Other Contractual Services 1,141,035 674,656
Telephone 2,000 420
Sub-total Service Disbursements 1,511,135 862,113
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 63,090,602 12,818,923
Excess / (Deficit) of Funds $ (11,115,207) $ (7,699,364)
Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year 33,271,289 94,382,125
Total Net Assets - End of Period $ 22,156,082 $ 86,682,761

See Comment

Comment: Convention Center Construction budget was approved by the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention / Arena Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on March 26, 2003.

See accountants' report

" BEENE GARTER LLP



Item IV.c.iv

Grand Center,
as Managed by SMG

Special Purpose Financial Statements as
of and for the Years Ended June 30,

2003 and 2002 and Independent Auditors’
Report



GRAND CENTER, AS MANAGED BY SMG

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1
SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS
ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002:
Special Purpose Statements of Assets, Liabilities and Amount Due Operator
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 2
Special Purpose Statements of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses Arising
from Activities Managed by SMG 3
Special Purpose Statements of Changes in Amount Due Operator
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 4
Special Purpose Statements of Operating Cash Flows Arising from
Activities Managed by SMG 5

Notes to Special Purpose Financial Statements 6-9



700 Bridgewater Place
333 Bridge St., NW.
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49504-5359

Tel:(616) 336-7900
Fax:(616) 336-7950

S o Deloitte
& Touche

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Grand Center, as Managed by SMG
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying special purpose financial statements of Grand Center, as managed by
SMG (“SMG-Grand Center”), as of June 30, 2003 and 2002 and for the years then ended, as listed in the
Table of Contents. These special purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the management of
SMG-Grand Center. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these special purpose financial statements

based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the special purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the special purpose financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall special purpose financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2, the accompanying special purpose financial statements were prepared to present the
assets, liabilities, amount due operator, operating revenues, operating expenses and operating cash flows of
the Grand Center arising from the management activities of SMG and are not intended to be a complete
presentation of the Grand Center’s financial position and results of operations.

In our opinion, such special purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of SMG-Grand Center as of June 30, 2003 and 2002 and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with the basis of presentation described in Note 2.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of SMG-Grand Center and
officials of the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority, and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

‘D(/J/% A m LLp

September 5, 2003

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu



GRAND CENTER, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND AMOUNT

DUE OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash:
Operating
Ticket sales escrow
Accounts receivable—net of allowances of $16,769 and $0
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Advance ticket sales
Advance deposits

Total current liabilities

AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR

TOTAL

See notes to special purpose financial statements.

2003 2002
$1,290,385 $1,679,152
16,293 92,084
350,700 267,566
46,476 30,730
$1,703,854 $2,069,532
$ 77,941 $ 704,749
154,353 172,574
16,293 92,084
126,905 147,275
375,492 1,116,682
1,328,362 952,850
$1,703,854 $2,069,532




GRAND CENTER, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING REVENUES AND OPERATING

EXPENSES ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

OPERATING REVENUES:
Events
Net ancillary revenues:
Food and beverage
Artcraft
Novelties
Equipment rental
Total ancillary revenues

Total events and ancillary revenues

Other (including interest income of $19,013 and $24,098
in 2003 and 2002, respectively)

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Payroll and related
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Utilities
Management fee
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

DEFICIENCY OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

See notes to special purpose financial statements.

2003 2002
$1,500444  $1,478,000
187,276 204,274
240,026 230,753
21,219 43,309
112,240 118,434
560,761 597,270
2,061,205 2,075,270
114,187 94,604
2,175,392 2,169,874
970,364 847,610
84,839 123,883
76,059 89,864
562,600 489,108
264,181 305,069
459,114 374,429
2,417,157 2,229,963
$ (241,765) $ (60,089)




GRAND CENTER, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN AMOUNT DUE
OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

2003 2002
Amount due Operator—Beginning of year $ 952,850 $545,914
Deficiency of operating revenues over operating expenses (241,765) (60,089)
Contributions received from Operator 621,806 514,866
Amounts paid to Operator (4,529) (47,841)
Amount due Operator—End of year $ 1,328,362 $952,850

See notes to special purpose financial statements.



GRAND CENTER, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM

ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Deficiency of operating revenues over operating expenses

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Advance deposits

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions received from operator
Amounts paid to operator

Net cash provided by financing activities

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN OPERATING CASH

OPERATING CASH—Beginning of year

OPERATING CASH—End of year

See notes to special purpose financial statements.

2003 2002

$ (241,765) $  (60,089)
(83,134) 246,321
(15,746) 7,009
(626,808) (644,281)
(18,221) 20,296
(20,370) (29,855)
(1,006,044) (460,599)
621,306 514,866
(4,529) (47,841)
617,277 467,025
(388,767) 6,426
1,679,152 1,672,726
$1,290385  $ 1,679,152




GRAND CENTER, AS MANAGED BY SMG

NOTES TO SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

1. OPERATIONS

The Grand Center provides space for conventions, trade shows, concerts, meetings and other
performances. The Grand Center is operated by the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority (the “Operator”).

The Operator has entered into a Management Agreement (the “Agreement”) with SMG to manage the
operations of the Grand Center. The Agreement will expire on June 30, 2006. The activities of the Grand
Center that are managed by SMG are referred to herein as “SMG-Grand Center.”

The Operator from time to time provides funding to SMG-Grand Center to pay the obligations of the
Grand Center when due. The Operator is contractually obligated to fund all liabilities and expenses of
the Grand Center.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation—The accompanying special purpose financial statements have been prepared on
the accrual basis and include transactions managed by SMG in accordance with the Agreement,
measured in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Accordingly, the special purpose financial statements do not include property and equipment;
noncontractual repair expenditures; and related fund equity associated with Grand Center; or certain
other activities of the Operator related to Grand Center that are not part of the activities managed by
SMG. Payroll and related expenses are for employees hired by SMG to manage Grand Center under the
Agreement. These employees are not employees of the Operator. The accompanying special purpose
financial statements are intended solely for the information and use of the management and officials of
the Operator and SMG and are not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Use of Estimates—Estimates and assumptions are required to be used by management in the preparation
of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of operating revenues and
operating expenses during the reporting period. Management believes its estimates to be reasonable;
however, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Advance Ticket Sales—The Grand Center incurs a liability for all cash received from ticket sales in
advance of an event; a corresponding amount is held in a separate escrow account. Revenues are not
recognized until the related event occurs.



Event Revenues—SMG-Grand Center records event revenue upon the completion of the event.
Accordingly, amounts received for advance ticket sales or deposits by promoters are recorded as
liabilities until that time. Costs incurred prior to an event are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged
to expense upon completion of the event.

Ancillary Revenues—All rental and concession revenues are recognized when eared. Concession
revenues are a contractually determined percentage of gross receipts collected by the vendor for each
event.

Other Operating Revenues—Other operating revenues are comprised of interest income, non-event
equipment rental income, ticket rebates, and other miscellaneous items.

Noncontractual Repairs—SMG-Grand Center from time to time incurs costs funded by the Operator’s
capital projects budget, which is separate and distinct from the operating funds provided by the Operator
to the Grand Center. The Operator ultimately decides which expenses will be capitalized or expensed.
These costs are excluded from operating expenses in the accompanying special purpose statement of
operating revenues and operating expenses and are included in the special purpose statement of changes
in amount due operator, as part of amounts paid to operator.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT AND FEES

Under the Management Agreement (the “Agreement”), between SMG and the Operator, the Operator
pays SMG an annual base management fee. The annual base management fee was $225,000 for the year
ended June 30, 2002 and is adjusted annually by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index
(not to exceed 3% in any one year).

Under the Agreement, SMG also receives an incentive fee based on the combined results of operations
of SMG-Grand Center and Van Andel Arena as managed by SMG (“SMG-Arena”) compared to certain
operating revenue benchmarks, as defined in the Agreement. To qualify for the incentive fee, combined
operating revenues of SMG-Grand Center and SMG-Arena must exceed combined operating expenses
by the established benchmark, which was $1,207,078 and $1,043,839 for the years ended June 30, 2003
and 2002, respectively.

Under the Agreement, the total incentive fee paid cannot exceed the management fee.



The following is a schedule of the total management fees for the year ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, of
which $36,706 and $80,069 are included in accrued expenses as of that date, respectively:

2003 2002
Base management fee $ 227475 $ 225,000
Excess of revenue over expenses—Arena 1,590,899 1,659,480
Deficiency of revenue over expenses—Grand Center (241,765) (60,089)
Total excess of revenue over expenses 1,349,134 1,599,391
Incentive fee:
Total operating revenues—Arena 4,943,449 4,896,480
Total operating revenues—Grand Center 2,175,392 2,169,874
Total operating revenues 7,118,841 7,066,354
Revenue benchmark—Arena 4,246,112 4,199,913
Revenue benchmark—Grand Center 1,991,859 1,769,531
Total Revenue benchmark 6,237,971 5,969,444
Revenues in excess of revenue benchmark 880,870 1,096,910
Computation of incentive fee resulting from revenues in excess
of revenue benchmark:
20% of the first $1,000,000 collectively 176,173 200,000
25% of the excess of $1,000,000 collectively 24,228
Total incentive fee 176,173 224,228
Incentive Fee—Arena’s Portion 139,467 144,159
Incentive Fee—Grand Center’s Portion 36,706 80,069
Total incentive fee 176,173 224,228
Total management fees—Grand Center $ 264,181 $ 305,069
RETIREMENT PLAN

Employees at the Grand Center may elect to participate in the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan, a
401(k) defined contribution plan covering SMG employees who have completed one year of
employment and 1,000 hours of service. SMG-Grand Center makes matching contributions equal to
67% of each participant’s contribution up to a maximum of 5% of the employee’s eligible
compensation. Discretionary contributions may also be made for eligible participants who have
completed 1,000 hours of service in the current plan year and who are employed as of the last day of the
plan year. SMG-Grand Center made $27,777 and $9,932 in matching contributions and $7,307 and
$6,622 in discretionary contributions for the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.



OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the operations of Grand Center, SMG personnel also manage the operations of Van Andel
Arena. The two facilities share certain expenses such as payroll, employee fringe benefits, and
insurance, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities. The two facilities also
share a box office, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities for ticket sales.
Accounts payable of Grand Center include $9,000 and $ 736,000 due to Van Andel Arena as of June 30,
2003 and 2002, respectively. Accounts receivable of Grand Center include $187,000 and $94,000 due
from Van Andel Arena as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

CONTINGENCIES
The Grand Center is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in the
normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not have a

material effect on SMG-Grand Center’s financial position due to insurance coverage. As such, no
provision for loss has been made in the accompanying special purpose financial statements.

% ok Kk k ok ¥k



Van Andel Arena, as
Managed by SMG

Special Purpose Financial Statements as
of and for the Years Ended June 30,
2003 and 2002 and Independent
Auditors’ Report

Item IV.c.iv



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1
SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED
JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002:
Special Purpose Statements of Assets, Liabilities and Amount Due Operator
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 2
Special Purpose Statements of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG 3
Special Purpose Statements of Changes in Amount Due Operator Arising
from Activities Managed by SMG 4
Special Purpose Statements of Operating Cash Flows Arising from
Activities Managed by SMG 5

Notes to Special Purpose Financial Statements 6-9



Deloitte & Touche LLP

700 Bridgewater Place

333 Bridge St., N.W.

Grand Rapids, Michigan 49504-5359

Tel: (616) 336-7900
Fax:(616) 336-7950

el com Deloitte
&Touche

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Van Andel Arena, as Managed by SMG
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying special purpose financial statements of Van Andel Arena, as managed by
SMG (“SMG-Arena™), as of June 30, 2003 and 2002 and for the years then ended, as listed in the Table of
Contents. These special purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the management of SMG-
Arena. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these special purpose financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the special purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the special purpose financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall special purpose financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2, the accompanying special purpose financial statements were prepared to present the
assets, liabilities, amount due Operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and operating cash flows of
Van Andel Arena arising from the management activities of SMG and are not intended to be a complete
presentation of Van Andel Arena’s financial position and results of operations.

In our opinion, such special purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of SMG-Arena at June 30, 2003 and 2002 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in conformity with the basis of presentation described in Note 2.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of SMG and officials of the

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

DZJ/)‘(/& { m LL P

September 5, 2003

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND AMOUNT

DUE OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG

JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002
ASSETS 2003 2002
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash:
Operating $2,681,944 $1,126,852
Ticket sales escrow 1,219,429 2,236,045
Accounts receivable—mnet of allowances of $85,537 842,774 2,610,562
Prepaid expenses 36,288 57,332
TOTAL $4,780,435 $6,030,791
LIABILITIES AND AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 649,991 $1,108,865
Accrued expenses 339,438 259,737
Advance ticket sales 1,219,429 2,236,045
Advance deposits 67,405 50,000
Deferred income 502,625 552,038
Total current liabilities 2,778,888 4,206,685
AMOUNT DUE OPERATOR 2,001,547 1,824,106
TOTAL $4,780,435 $6,030,791

See notes to special purpose financial statements.




VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING REVENUES AND OPERATING

EXPENSES ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

OPERATING REVENUES:
Events
Net ancillary revenues:
Food and beverage
Novelties
Other

Total ancillary revenues
Total events and ancillary revenues

Other (including interest income of $49,225 and $62,644
in 2003 and 2002, respectively)

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Payroll and related
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Utilities
Management fee
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

EXCESS OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

See notes to special purpose financial statements.

2003 2002
$1,287,498 $1,311,105
1,267,174 1,251,601
237,765 301,583
51,174 47,217
1,556,113 1,600,401
2,843,611 2,911,506
2,099,838 1,984,974
4,943,449 4,896,480
1,120,528 1,053,666
129,206 119,741
200,346 213,851
751,182 711,425
366,942 369,159
784,346 769,158
3,352,550 3,237,000
$1,590,899 $1,659,480




VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN AMOUNT
DUE OPERATOR ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

2003 2002
Amount due Operator—beginning of year $1,824,106 $1,644,633
Excess of operating revenues over operating expenses 1,590,899 1,659,480
Contributions received from Operator 839,252 831,709
Amounts paid to Operator (2,252,710) (2,311,716)
Amount due Operator—end of year $2,001,547 $1,824,106

See notes to special purpose financial statements.



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS OF OPERATING CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM
ACTIVITIES MANAGED BY SMG
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

2003 2002
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Excess of operating revenues over operating expenses $1,590,899 $1,659,480
Adjustment to reconcile the excess of operating revenues over operating
expenses to net cash provided by operating activities:
Amortization of contract rights 5,738
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 1,767,788 (116,412)
Prepaid expenses 21,044 22,678
Accounts payable (458,874) 38,863
Accrued expenses 79,701 (6,279)
Advance deposits 17,405 24,178
Deferred income (49,413) 110,533
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,968,550 1,738,779
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions received from Operator 839,252 831,709
Amounts paid to Operator (2,252,710) (2,311,716)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,413,458) (1,480,007)
INCREASE IN OPERATING CASH 1,555,092 258,772
OPERATING CASH—Beginning of year 1,126,852 868,080
OPERATING CASH—End of year $2,681,944 $1,126,852

See notes to special purpose financial statements.



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG

NOTES TO SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 AND 2002

1. OPERATIONS

The Van Andel Arena (the “Arena”) provides space for family shows, concerts, sporting events,
meetings and other performances. The Arena is operated by the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority (the “Operator”).

The Operator has entered into a management agreement (the “Agreement”) with SMG to manage the
operations of the Arena. The Agreement will expire on June 30, 2006. The activities of the Arena that
are managed by SMG are referred to herein as “SMG-Arena”.

The Operator from time to time provides funding to SMG-Arena to pay the obligations of the Arena
when due. The Operator is contractually obligated to fund all liabilities and expenses of the Arena.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation—The accompanying special purpose financial statements have been prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting and include transactions managed by SMG in accordance with the
Agreement, measured in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. Accordingly, the special purpose financial statements do not include property and
equipment; noncontractual repair expenditures; and related fund equity associated with the Arena; or
certain other activities of the Operator related to the Arena that are not part of the activities managed by
SMG. Payroll and related expenses are for employees hired by SMG to manage the Arena under the
Agreement. These employees are not employees of the Operator. The accompanying special purpose
financial statements are intended solely for the information and use of the management and officials of
the Operator and SMG and are not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Use of Estimates—Estimates and assumptions are required to be used by management in the preparation
of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of operating revenues and
operating expenses during the reporting period. Management believes its estimates to be reasonable;
however, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Contract Rights—In prior years, the Arena operated under a multi-year service contract with a major
beverage supplier. Under the former contract, both the contract rights and related deferred income was
amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the contract (five years). The Arena signed a new
contract through September 30, 2005, which allowed for the continued use of existing fully depreciated
equipment at no additional cost.



Advance Ticket Sales—The Arena incurs a liability for cash received from ticket sales in advance of an
event for which a corresponding amount is held in a separate escrow account. Operating revenues are
not recognized until the related event occurs.

Deferred Income—Deferred income is comprised primarily of advanced billings and collections for
luxury boxes and advertising contracts which are recognized as revenues on a straight line basis over the
life of the contract.

Event Revenues—SMG-Arena records event revenue upon the completion of the event. Accordingly,
amounts received for advance ticket sales or deposits by promoters are recorded as liabilities until that
time. Costs incurred prior to an event are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged to expense upon
completion of the event.

Ancillary Revenues—All rental and concession revenues are recognized when earned. Concession
revenues are a contractually determined percentage of gross receipts collected by the vendor for each
event.

Other Operating Revenues—Other operating revenues include revenues associated with luxury seating,
advertising, interest income and other miscellaneous items not included in event or ancillary revenues.

Noncontractual Repairs—SMG-Arena from time to time incurs costs funded by the Operator’s capital
projects budget, which is separate and distinct from the operating funds provided by the Operator to the
Arena. The Operator ultimately decides which expenses will be capitalized or expensed. These costs are
excluded from operating expenses in the accompanying special purpose statement of operating revenues
and operating expenses and are included in the special purpose statement of changes in amounts due
operator as part of amounts paid to operator.

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT AND FEES

Under the Management Agreement (the “Agreement”) between SMG and the Operator, the Operator
pays SMG an annual base management fee. The annual base management fee was $225,000 for the year
ended June 30, 2002 and is adjusted annually by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index
(not to exceed 3% in any one year).

Under the Agreement, SMG also receives an incentive fee based on the combined results of operations
of the Arena and Grand Center as managed by SMG (“SMG-Grand Center”) compared to certain
operating revenue benchmarks, as defined in the Agreement. To qualify for the incentive fee, combined
operating revenues of SMG-Arena and SMG-Grand Center must exceed combined operating expenses
by the established benchmark, which was $1,207,078 and $1,043,839 for the years ended June 30, 2003
and 2002, respectively.

Under the Agreement, the total incentive fee paid cannot exceed the management fee.



The following is a schedule of the total management fees for the year ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, of
which $139,467 and $144,159 are included in accrued expenses as of that date, respectively:

2003 2002
Base management fee $ 227,475 $ 225,000
Excess of revenue over expenses—Arena 1,590,899 1,659,480
Deficiency of revenue over expenses—Grand Center (241,765) (60,089)
Total excess of revenue over expenses 1,349,134 1,599,391
Incentive fee:
Total operating revenues—Arena 4,943,449 4,896,480
Total operating revenues—Grand Center 2,175,392 2,169,874
Total operating revenues 7,118,841 7,066,354
Revenue benchmark—Arena 4,246,112 4,199,913
Revenue benchmark—Grand Center 1,991,859 1,769,531
Total Revenue benchmark 6,237,971 5,969,444
Revenues in excess of revenue benchmark 880,870 1,096,910
Computation of incentive fee resulting from revenues in excess
of revenue benchmark—
20% of the first $1,000,000 collectively 176,173 200,000
25% of the excess of $1,000,000 collectively 24,228
Total incentive fee 176,173 224,228
Incentive Fee—Arena’s Portion 139,467 144,159
Incentive Fee—Grand Center’s Portion 36,706 80,069
Total incentive fee 176,173 224,228
Total management fees—Arena $ 366,942 $ 369,159
RETIREMENT PLAN

Employees at the Arena may elect to participate in the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan, a 401(k)
defined contribution plan covering SMG employees who have completed one year of employment and
1,000 hours of service. SMG-Arena makes matching contributions equal to 67% of each participant’s
contribution up to a maximum of 5% of the participant’s eligible compensation. Discretionary
contributions may also be made for eligible participants who have completed 1,000 hours of service in
the current plan year and who are employed as of the last day of the plan year. SMG-Arena made
$31,059 and $10,521 in matching contributions and $7,718 and $6,778 in discretionary contributions for
the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.



OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the operations of the Arena, SMG personnel also manage the operations of Grand Center.
The two facilities share certain expenses such as payroll, employee fringe benefits, and insurance,
resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities. The two facilities also share a box
office, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities for ticket sales. Accounts
receivable of the Arena include $9,000 and $736,000 due from the Grand Center as of June 30, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Accounts payable at the Arena include $187,000 and $94,000 due to the Grand
Center as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

CONTINGENCIES
The Arena is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in the normal
course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not have a

material effect on SMG-Arena’s financial position due to insurance coverage. As such, no provision for
loss has been made in the accompanying special purpose financial statements.

% %k dk %k k %k



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY

Item V
DATE EVENT EC ROOM TIME FUNCTION

Wed, Oct 15 Available

Thur, Oct 16 | Available

Fri, Oct 17 Michael W. Smith MS Arena 7:30 PM Performance

Michael W. Smith MW | Banquet C/D | 4:30 AM Set-up

8A-9:30P Crew catering

Sat, Oct 18 Griffins vs Houston Aeros | AH Arena 10:00A-12:30P Teams practice
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Hockey season opener
10P-10:30P Post-game skate

Griffins MW | BanquetC 4:00 PM Set-up

6P-7:30P Meeting/Youth hockey

Sun, Oct 19 Available

Mon, Oct 20 | Available

Tue, Oct 21 Available

Wed, Oct 22 | Available

Thur, Oct 23 | Available

Fri, Oct 24 Griffins vs Utah MS Arena 10:00A-12:30P Teams practice
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Hockey game

Sat, Oct 25 Blue Man Group AH Arena 8:00 PM Performance

Sun, Oct 26 Available

Mon, Oct 27 | Available

Tue, Oct 28 Available

Wed, Oct 29 | Griffins vs Toronto MS Arena 10:00A-12:30P Teams practice
6:30 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

Thur, Oct 30 | Available

Fri, Oct 31 Available

Sat, Nov 1 Floyd Mayweather AH Arena 7:30 PM Boxing match

Sun, Nov 2 Available

Mon, Nov 3 Available

Tue, Nov 4 Available

Wed, Nov § Griffins vs Cincinnati AH Arena 10:00A-12:30P Teams practice
6:30 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

Thur, Nov 6 Available

Fri, Nov 7 Available

Sat, Nov 8 Griffins vs Hamilton MS Arena 10:00A-12:30P Teams practice
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Hockey game

Sun, Nov 9 Available

Mon, Nov 10 | Available

Tue, Nov 11 Griffins vs Houston AH Arena 11:00 AM Doors
12P-2:30P Hockey game

Wed, Nov 12 | Kiss/Aerosmith MS Arena 7:00 PM Performance

Thur, Nov 13 | Griffins vs San Antonio AH Arena 10:00A-12:30P Teams practice
6:30 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

Fri, Nov 14 Available

Sat, Nov 15 Griffins vs San Antonio MS Arena 10:00A-12:30P Teams practice
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Hockey game

Sun, Nov 16 | Available




TVSIVIHIY dli-dL
TIVH 1SV 13JVO DV | AV NI JAON d9-v8 /Ad 1371vd — WVIDO¥d 494 77100 'dim
TVSIVIHTY dii-dL
AV NI JAON d9-v8 /Ad 13711ve - WVID0dd d9d 12100 "SdflL
TVSIVIHTY d11-dL
AV NI HAON do-vs§ /Ad 1971vd - WVID0dd d5d
ATVMANS AD01 d¢ PITVMAS
TANNNL D071 dl [TINNNL
100 JAON dS-NOON MDOOd‘HO
(T4 LOH)HONNT 4OLIEIHXT d0¢:1-NOON HdOV
SLIGIHXd NOON-V0£:6 MO
NOON — 1LNO FAON DV MTVMANS AD0INN Voe6 YIVMANS TVNOISSTI0¥d TIVOHLTVHH
NVITI DV Ll TINNAL ADOTINN Vo¢-8 /TINNNL 404 ALFID0S NVOIEWY 0Z LD0 'NOW
TINNAL Y001 dogiL TANNNL
ATVAMAAS AD0T d0€:9 ATIVMAXIS
NOLLdFOTY/SLIdIHXE d0£:9-d0t'y HD
TANNML AD0TINN d¢ /TANNNL
MOHS N3dO ATVMANS AO0TNN V8 ATVMAMS TVNOISSFI0¥d TIVOHLIVIH
NI SAON DV a1 NI SAOW JOLIdIHXH de-vg MO0d'HO JOd ALFIDOS NVORIHWY
AV ONVH-Tdd d1i-d9 /AQ 1ITIVE-WVIOO0Ud dTd 61 LOO 'NNS
1N0 FAON VZ-d0t:01 /€4 31004°Ad
FONVANIOLdEd d01-dot-L
DNILVES O1 S300d dL /Ad
lvaddn dL-d0g:9 /ONILVES ‘HO4O
v VILSTHIUO Ol SY00d dsi:9 /IAd vydd0 — NI ANV FIIN 40
TVYNOISSTJ0dd TIVOHLTVEH
13S HSINIJ OV £y NI JAON JV WV MO Y04 ALIIO0S NVORIIWY 81100 LVS
FONVINIOIIAd d01-dot:L
DONILVES Ol S400d dL /Ad
lvdddn d.-d0g:9 /ONLLVES 'HO4O
TIVOHLIVIH LIS OV | AV VYLSTHIYO Ol §300d dst:9 /Ad vddd0 — NI ANV FIIN 40 L1120 Tdd
AV nivd va /A V4440 — NI ANV FIIN 40
1N0 FAON d8-dL
NOILJFOTd dL-d9 YALIVHO NVOIHOIN NJALSHM —
ar NI JAON d9-d§ /A990T AQ | SLOFLIHOYY JO FLNLLLSNI NVORIEWY
110 IAON d8-d0ot:v
MOHS dt-voi
1NOJAON DV FARNIY SYOANIA V8
NVaID OV | dN JARYY J4VLS Vi /MO MOHS SSINISNd dHL 91 100 SYNHL
(00S) TVSAVIHTI NHdO d0g€:01-d0¢ L
$4ND LHOIT do¢:L-VOl
AV | FLON ¥INOISTJ ONILHOIT VO01-V8 /Ad V340 - NIW ANV 9N 40
MOHS d-vol
FATIIV SYOANTA V8
MOHS N3dOJV | dW STHARNY A4VLS Vi /HO MOHS SSINISNd FHL §1.100 dim
TVSIVIHTA dog:01-d0t-L
S$9ND LHOI'T dog:L-vOol
MV | 9LON JINDISHA ONILHOI'T VO0i-V8 /Ad vigd0 — NI ANV FIIN 10
NI JAON d9-vé
NIFAON DV | 4N FARNIY SH0LVI0D3d V8 /HD MOHS SSINIsNg IHL #1100 'S3NL
TVSYAVAHTY SSTIA ONVId dog:11-d0¢:L
S4ND LHOI'T dOE:L-NOON
AV SNJ04 ONILHOI'T NOON-V8 /A Vddd0 — NI ANV JIIN 40
NI JAOW DV | 4K NI ZAON SYLOLVIOD3d ds-vg /HO MOHS SSINISNd FHL £1 100 'NOW
NOLLDNYLSNOJ/SNOLLVYIdO ok | NOILLINNA ANIL (002 LNIAY aLvd

€00 AVAA — ATAIIM FOVId SOA HA




1N0 JAON Vi-d01
HONVINOJIdAd do1-dog-L
sYood d0g:9
AV NI JAON ds-v8 /A SFIAVT ADIVNTIVE ¥ AON 'SAMNL
£ AON 'NOW
1N0 IAON d6-d8
FONVINIOIddd d8-d9
SJ00d dog:$
HONVIAIOIAId ds-d¢
SJ00d doe:
AV NI JAON V38 /Ad A€S0D T1id Z AON 'Nf1S
1N0 AON aIn-dol
FONVINIOIIAd doi-d8
ONILVES OL S¥00d dog:L
lv3adadn dog:L-dL
AV Ag401 0l SJ00d ds¥:9 /Ad 11 TVOISSVID — OSAD 1 AON '1VS
HONVINIOIIAd dot:01-d8
DNILVES OL SY00d dog:L
lvaddn dog:L~dL
p:\4 Ag901 01 S400d dL /Ad 111 TVIISSVIO — OS¥D
1NO FAON d9-dt FAONTIFINOD
N MOHS dT-vé /HD NOILVONAd NI VIGIW Y04 0SSV IN 1€ 120 'Nid
TVSYVIHTA doi-dL
AV ONVH JIA di-dv /A 1 TVIISSVTID — OSUD
FONTIFANOD
14 MOHS d9-vs§ /HD NOILLVONAd NI VIGI 404 DOSSV IN 0€ 1LOO 'SUNHL
TVSYIHTA d01-dog:L
AV TVSAVIHTA d9-dot:€ /Ad 111 TVIISSV1D — OSdD
FAONTITINOD
N NI GAON ds-v8 /HO NOILVONQd NI VIGIW J0A 0SSV IN 67 100 ‘'ddm
TVSIVIHAL do1-dog-L
TVSIAVIHTE d9-dot¢
AV NI JAOW d1-V8 /Ad 111 TVIISSVID — OSUD 87 1D0 "SANL
NHd4O S1IdIHXd de-vsg /M4
IN MOHS d0¢:Z-ve /HD WO S.ATVIA LT 1D0 'NOW
10O IAON d0¢:8-dot v
FONVINIOLIIAd dogi-dt
DNILVES OL S400d doc:1
AV Ag8407 Ol SJ00d dl /Ad 1ATIVE - NWWVIDOUd dT
N340 SLIgIHXH d0€:9-v01 /Ad
ALdvd V1-d0¢-8
14 MOHS d9-VIl /HD WNI0d S.ATVIA 9Z LJ0 'NNS
HAONVIAIOIIdd d01-dog'L
ONILVES OL S¥00d dL
AV Ag407 Ol S400d L (X3) /Ad 1371ve - WWIDO0Ud d3d
N340 SLIdIHXd d01-d9
IJN NI JAON NOON-V8 /M4 WNIOS S.ATVIA §TL1D0 LVS
FINVINIOLIdd do1-dog-L
ONILVES OL S3900d dL
AV A94071 Ol SY00d d0¢:9 /Ad 13TIVE - WVIDOUd dTd
NI FAOW JOLIGIHXT d9-vol /M3
SATVINNIHJAON IV | dW FARNY 44V.1S VOg:L /HI'HO WNYOd S ATVIA 7 100 Rd
TVSIVIHTA dll-dL
TIVH LSVE SHLOOd 19§ OV | AV NI JAON d9-v3 /A 1ITIVE - WWVIDOUd dTd €2 100 SYNHL
NOILONYLSNOD/SNOLLVIILO Jd NOILIONNI JNILL WOOY INIAT ALVA

€00Z YVHA — ATIHdM HOV1d SOA HA




AV IVSAVIHTS d01-d0€ L /AQ AL TVOISSVIO — OS¥D
N NI SAOW i /MO | FONTYGINOD WILNIM SAIdVI ANVYD | 0T AON ‘SUNHL
TVSEvaHTI 401-d0E'L
A4 IVSAVIHTI do-dogi€ /AQ AL'TVOISSVIO — OS¥O 61 AON ‘qIM
TVSEVIHTA d01-d0€'L
TVSAVIHTI d9-dos:€
AV NI SAOW NOON-V8 /Ad AL TVDISSVIO — OS¥D 81 AON SINL
L1 AON 'NOW
91 AON 'NNS
100 SAOW Vi-dol
FONVIO4Ed d01-d0€:L
$900a dOg:9
p:\4 NI SAOW ds-v8 /AQ $3NT4 AJOOW S1 AON'LVS
dN 100 IAOW NOON-V8 /HO SYIMOUD ANNIFANTE IN ¥1 ANON Tid
IGEINO V1-d01
IVNIWES do1-dt
s300d ds1:9 $NOZIANTA
SV NI SAOW ds-v8 /AQ FOVINIVIN SINOH LV ONINNIM
100 SAON d6-av
dN MOHS dr-vs /HO SYIMOYD ANNAEANTEIN | €1 AON 'S¥NHL
MOHS dL-d1
N NI SAOW NOON-V8 /HO SYAMOUD ANYIFANTH IN 1 AON ‘aam
100 SAON d0ET1-dOT 1
JONVINNOIIAd doZI-V1l
$900d VOE:01 ¥dLVEHL
AV NI SAOW VOE01-V6 /Ad ATIAVA NVONEAY — VTTTYIANID
dN NI SAOW ds-v8 /HO SYAMOUO ANIAFANTE IN 11 AON 'SENL
1N0 JAOW di1-dé
MOHS d6-d9
ar NI SAOW d9-V6 MO /T NOILONY 49HD VLS £00¢ 01 AON "NOW
1N0 SAON d8-ds
FONVINIOINAd ds-dg
ONILVES Ol 4004 d0€'T
AV A8€0T 01 $400d dz /Ad 11 S40d - OS¥O
110 IAON d8-dv
ar MOHS drvil /HO HLVEYM SHL HLVANTE 6 AON NS
FONVNEOIAd d01-d8
ONILVES OL 4004 dogiL
D\ AH€0T 0L $400d dL /AG Il Sd0d — OS¥O
ar MOHS 49-vol /HO HLVTYM SHL HLVENAE 8 AON 'LVS
FONVAEOAYAd d01-d8
ONILVES OL 4004 dog:L
D\ Ag607 0L $400d dL /Ad I S40d ~ OS¥D
ar MOHS dL-vii /HO HLVTYA SHI HLVANIE L AON T¥d
(@1403d HONAT TIR¥AN
vV 005) TVSYVIHTA N3JO -dL /AQ 11 S40d ~ OS¥O
ar NI SAOW ds-vL /HO HLVTYM SH1 HLVENAd 9 AON ‘S¥NHL
1N0 SAON VOETI-d0E'6
FONVIANOIEd dOE:6-dOE L
ONILVES Ol $300d dL
A€€07T OL S400d d0E:9
AV NI SAOW ds-v6 /Ad 1371VE MOJSOW $ AON aam
NOLLDQY.LSNOOD/SNOLLVYEJO o3 NOLLONNA IWIL WO0Y INIAT aLvd

€007 IVAAX — ATIEIM OV1d SOA Hd




dn 13S SAILITLN di-vi av
Ad3AITad
1S JHOITIA TVILNILOd dOE¥-V0E-8 /$A204d 4d MOHSIAVIL SATRIOMAOOM
FONVINIOIdd dog:01-d8
DNILVES O1 SY00d dogiL
AV Agg01 01 SY00d dL /Ad ALNOW 1104 FHL 8Z AON Tdd
1S AvVa vd AVd Xvda /SAD0d dd MOHSIAVIL SYTRIOMAOOM
1NO FAON di-d0g-i
LANONVE dog:1-vog:11
IN NI GAON VOE 11-VOE:9 /MO LANONVE SINRLLSINIA YILLOYL THN
FAINVINIOLAAd do1-dog:L
ONILVES O1 $900d dL
AV A€9d0T1 01 S¥300d dog:9 /Ad ALNOW 1104 FHL LT AON ‘S4NHL
AdIAITId
1S JIHOIFYA TVILNILOd dOE-VO0E-8 /$2100d 4d MOHSIAWVIL SYTIOMA0OM
N NI JAON ds-v§ /HD LINONYY SIRILSINIA ¥3LLOYL THN
FAINVINIOIIdd do1-dog-L
ONILVES O $900d dL
AV A€94d0T1 0l S400d dog:9 /Ad ALNOW 11N gHL 97 AON "dam
AdIAITId
LS LHOITE TVILNZLOd dOE-VOE:8 /$21004 dd MOHSIAAVYL SYTNRIOMA0OM
AONVINIOIETd do1-dogiL
DONILVES OL S¥00d dL
AV Agd01 0l S¥00d d0¢:9 /Ad ALNOW T10d FHL ST AON "SdNL
AJIAITId
1S LHOITY TVILNILOd dOE-Voe8 /S§00d dd MOHSIAVYL SYTRIOMA00M
NI SAON doi-d9
pAA dRILS ISAOH ds-ve /Ad ALNOW T1Nd FHL $Z AON 'NOW
AgIAITad
1S JHOITES TVILNELOd dOE#-VO0E:8 /SY004 dd MOHSIAVYIL SYTRIoOMA0OM
1N0 GAON d6-d$
ONILITN ds-dl
HOYNHO NOON-V01
dar S300d V6 /HD | FONTIFTINOD YHLNIM SIdVYE ANVED £Z AON 'NNS
AJIAITId
1S JHOITS TVILNILOd dOE:-V0E8 /S2100d dd MOHSIAVIL SYDRIOMA0OOM
1N0 FAON d11-do1
FONVINIOIYTd doi-d8
ONILVES O1 S400d doe:L
lvaddn dog:L-dL
AV A€94d07 01 SY400d dL /Ad AI'TVOISSVIO — OS¥D
ONILIAN AIN-d0t:L
SJYOO0d dog:9
ONILITNW dZ-voi
ar SHo0d V6 /HO | FONTITANOD YILNIM SAIIVE ANVID ZT AON 'LVS
Ad9AITad
1S JHOITYEA TVILNILOd dOE:-VOe:8 /1004 dd MOHSIAVYL SATRIOMA00M
FAINVINIOIYId d01-d8
ONILVES OL S¥00d doeL
lvaddn dog:Li-dL
AV Agd071 Ol S900d dsv:9 /Ad AI'TVDISSVIO — OS¥D
ONILIINW AIN-dot:L
SA00d d0€:9
ar NI JAON ds-ve /HO | FONTITINOD YALNIM SAIIVE ANVED 17 AON Tid
NOILDNYLSNOD/SNOILVYIdO 23 NOLLONNA ANILL NO0od INIAA ALVA

€007 AVHA — ATIIIM HOVId SOA 5d




1NO JAON do¢:8
FAONVINIOIIAd d6-d0g:9
DNILVES OL S300d d9
A€9907 0L S¥00d dog:s
TONVARIOIHd dog:e-dl
ONILVES OL 3004 dogtl
AV Ag94d01 0L SY00d NOON /Ad ALNONW T1Nd HHL
NI FAOW JOANIA ATIVH
dn 13s
1S SALITLLN 2 NIFAONW OV d0i-vi X 04 MOHSIAVIL SYTNRIOMA00M 0£ AON 'NNS
HONVINRIOIdad d0€:01-d8
ONILVES OL S400d doge-L
Agd07 Ol SY00d dL
HONVINROIIEd d0€:-dT
ONILVES Ol S300d ()
AV Ag94071 0L S400d dl /Ad ALNOW T1Nd FHL
NI JAOW YOANIA ATIVH
dn 13s
1S STLITILLA %2 NI JAOW IOV doI-VL /O'E'VY MOHSIAVIL SYTRIOMAOOM 67 AON "LVS
NI FJAOW YOANIA ATIVH
NOLLOQMLSNOD/SNOLLVIIdO Jd NOLLONNA ANIL WOOoA LNIAT ALvVa

€007 AVAA — ATIHIM HOVId SOA 5d




